
 
 
 
 

TENTATIVE AGENDA & MEETING NOTICE 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

TUESDAY, MAY 6, 2025 
5:30 P.M. 

WATAUGA COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BUILDING 
COMMISSIONERS’ BOARD ROOM 

 
 

TIME # TOPIC PRESENTER PAGE 
     

5:30 1 CALL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER   
 2 APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

April 1, 2025, Regular Meeting 
April 1, 2025, Closed Session 

 1 

 3 APPROVAL OF THE MAY 6, 2025, AGENDA  13 
5:35 4 PUBLIC COMMENT 

    – Will last up to 1-hour dependent on number of speakers 
CHAIRMAN EGGERS 15 

5:40 5 PUBLIC HEARING TO ALLOW CITIZEN COMMENT ON A 
PROPOSAL TO REPEAL A 2024 AMENDMENT TO THE WATAUGA 
COUNTY BUILDING CODE ORDINANCE WHICH ADDED THE 
WORDING “AND ALL APPENDICES THEREIN” 

CHAIRMAN EGGERS 17 

5:45 6 WATAUGA MEDICS MERGER REQUEST MR. CRAIG SULLIVAN  63 
5:50 7 OLD COVE CREEK SCHOOL FACILITY FEASIBILITY STUDY AND 

CONCEPT PLAN 
MR. JUSTIN CHURCH 73 

5:55 8 APPALACHIAN STATE UNIVERSITY REQUEST FOR NC HWY 105 
PROPERTY RELEASE 

MR. J. J. BROWN 79 

6:00 9 BID AWARD REQUEST FOR ADMINISTRATION HVAC MR. ROBERT MARSH 89 
6:05 10 EMERGENCY SERVICES MATTERS  

A. Resolution Opposing House Bill 675: EMT Personnel 
Credentialing Modifications and House Bill 219: 
Counties/Franchise Ambulance Service 

B. Resolution Opposing Senate Bill 257: Current 
Operations Appropriations Act of 2025 

C. Resolution Supporting House Bill 695: Support 
VIPER/Assist 911 Operations/Dispatch 

D. Hurricane Helene Update 
E. Powder Horn Site Tree Removal and Construction 

Driveway Request 

MR. WILL HOLT  
95 

 
 

97 
 

99 
 

101 
109 

6:10 11 BOARD OF EQUALIZATION AND REVIEW (E&R) 
COMPENSATION  

MR. TYLER RASH 115 



 
 

Page 2 
Tuesday, May 6, 2025 

Tentative Agenda & Meeting Notice 
Board of County Commissioners 

 
 

TIME # TOPIC PRESENTER PAGE 
     

6:15 12 MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
A. Presentation of the FY 2026 Capital Improvement Plan 

(CIP) 
B. Presentation of the Manager’s FY 2026 Recommended 

Budget 
C. Proposed Valle Crucis School Change Order 
D. Civil Design Services for Proposed Solid Waste 

Convenience Center at Landfill Road  
E. Proposed Property & Liability Insurance and Workers 

Compensation Renewals Request 
F. Request to Amend the “Not to Exceed” Amount in 

DebrisTech’s Notice to Proceed 
G. Boards and Commissions 
H. Announcements 

MR. DERON GEOUQUE  
117 

 
119 

 
121 
123 

 
133 

 
141 

 
145 
149 

6:20 13 BREAK  149 
6:25 14 CLOSED SESSION 

Attorney/Client Matters per, G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3) 
 154 

7:00 15 ADJOURN   
 



AGENDA ITEM 2: 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
April 1, 2025, Regular Meeting 
April 1, 2025, Closed Session 
 
 

  

050325 BCC Meeting

1



DRAFT MINUTES 
  

WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
TUESDAY, APRIL 1, 2025 

 
The Watauga County Board of Commissioners held a regular meeting, as scheduled, on Tuesday, 
April 1, 2025, at 5:30 P.M. in the Commissioners’ Board Room located in the Watauga County 
Administration Building, Boone, North Carolina. 
 
Chairman Eggers called the meeting to order at 5:30 P.M.  The following were present: 
 

PRESENT:  Braxton Eggers, Chairman 
Todd Castle, Vice-Chairman 
Emily Greene, Commissioner 

   Tim Hodges, Commissioner 
   Ronnie Marsh, Commissioner 
   Nathan Miller, County Attorney 

Deron Geouque, County Manager 
Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 

 
Commissioner Hodges opened with a prayer and Commissioner Greene led the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Chairman Eggers presented the March 18, 2025, regular meeting and closed session minutes. 
 
Vice-Chairman Castle, seconded by Commissioner Greene, moved to approve the 
March 18, 2025, regular meeting minutes as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
Vice-Chairman Castle, seconded by Commissioner Greene, moved to approve the 
March 18, 2025, closed session minutes as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Chairman Eggers called for additions and/or corrections to the April 1, 2025, agenda. 
 
County Manager Geouque requested to add the following: 
 
Add under Library Matters: 

D. Proposed Uniform Guidance Procurement Policy for NC - Mr. Deron Geouque 

050325 BCC Meeting

2



After Library Matters: 
• Proposed Proclamation Designating April 2025 as “Sexual Assault Awareness Month”
• Proposed Proclamation Designating April 27 through May 3, 2025, as Resilient & Thriving

Communities Week

Expand Agenda Item 9 to Tax Matters adding the following items: 
B. Unpaid Real Estate Tax Bills  
C. Proposed Resolution Establishing the Watauga County Board of Equalization & Review 
D. Board of Equalization and Review (E&R) Schedule 

Add Boards and Commissions Under Miscellaneous Administrative Matter to include a first 
reading of Mr. Jeff Greene for the Watauga Medical Center Board of Trustees. 

County Attorney Miller  requested  to add that 29 CVS 117, Lisa Miller,  to be  discussed 
under Attorney/Client. 

Commissioner Hodges, seconded by Commissioner Marsh, moved to approve the April 1, 2025, 
agenda as amended. 

VOTE: Aye-5 
Nay-0 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
There was no public comment. 

LIBRARY MATTERS 
A. Proposed Proclamation for National Library Week 

Monica Caruso, Watauga County Library, presented and read a proposed Proclamation for 
National Library Week. 

Commissioner Greene, seconded by Vice-Chairman Castle, moved to adopt the proclamation as 
presented. 

VOTE: Aye-5 
Nay-0 

B. Library Renovation Report 

Ms. Monica Caruso stated that plans were now for the Library to renovate the space they have 
rather than add onto the building.  A grant application was submitted and requests have been made 
to the County through the Capital Improvement Plan to support the project.  An estimate has been 
received from VPC Builders as well.  Ms. Caruso introduced Mr. John Arnaud, Architect, who 

050325 BCC Meeting

3



presented the plan for the renovation.  The report was given for information only and, therefore, 
no action was required. 
 

C. Proposed Capital Project Ordinance for Library Renovation Project 

County Manager Geouque presented a proposed Project Ordinance for the Establishment and 
Maintenance of Funds for the Library Renovation Project which was necessary as the project 
would span more than one fiscal year.  
 
Commissioner Marsh, seconded by Commissioner Hodges, moved to approve the project 
ordinance as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
D. Proposed Uniform Guidance Procurement Policy for North Carolina 

County Manager Geouque presented a proposed Uniform Guidance Procurement Policy for North 
Carolina as required by the grant for the Library renovation project.  
 
Commissioner Hodges, seconded by Commissioner Eggers, moved to approve the project 
ordinance as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

PROPOSED PROCLAMATION DESIGNATING APRIL 2025 AS “SEXUAL ASSAULT 
AWARENESS MONTH”  
Ms. Kellie Bass, Prevention Outreach Manager with OASIS, Inc. (Opposing Abuse with Service, 
Information and Shelter) presented and read a proposed proclamation naming April 2025 as 
“Sexual Assault Awareness Month” in Watauga County. 
 
Commissioner Greene, seconded by Vice-Chairman Castle, moved to adopt the proclamation as 
presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

PROPOSED PROCLAMATION DESIGNATING APRIL 27 THROUGH MAY 3, 2025, AS 
RESILIENT & THRIVING COMMUNITIES WEEK  
Ms. Jessica Yates, Policy/Prevention Committee with the Watauga Compassionate Community 
Initiative, presented and read a proclamation naming April 27 through May 3, 2025, as “Resilient 
& Thriving Communities Week” in Watauga County. 
 

050325 BCC Meeting

4



Vice-Chairman Castle, seconded by Commissioner Marsh, moved to adopt the proclamation as 
presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

PROPOSED CHANGE ORDER FOR COMPLEX FENCING REPAIRS 
Mr. Robert Marsh, Watauga County Maintenance Director, requested approval of a change order 
in the amount of $14,857 for fence repairs on ball fields.  The change order was to allow for the 
addition of two (2) gates and about forty feet of fencing that was open and would now be enclosed.   
   
Commissioner Hodges, seconded by Chairman Eggers, moved to approve the change order from 
Mountain Fence and Deck in the amount of $14,857. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

PROPOSED RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF NORTH CAROLINA SENATE BILL 248  
On behalf of Ms. Amy Shook, Watauga County Register of Deeds, who had a prior commitment, 
Commissioner Hodges presented and read a proposed resolution in support of North Carolina 
Senate Bill 248.  The Bill would alleviate the burdens placed on adopted individuals by allowing 
them to obtain their birth records from their local Register of Deeds. 
 
Commissioner Greene, seconded by Commissioner Marsh, moved to adopt the resolution as 
presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

EMERGENCY SERVICES MATTERS: 
A. Request for Public Safety Radio System Civil, Tower, & Construction Work 

Mr. Will Holt, Emergency Services Director, requested authorization for ETS to perform the civil, 
engineering, and existing tower assessment work in the amount of $621,460.25 for the public 
safety radio system.  The scope of work would cover seven towers with the largest expense being 
the construction of the Rich Mountain tower.  Adequate funds were budgeted to cover the expense.   
 
Vice-Chairman Castle, seconded by Commissioner Hodges, moved to authorize the expenditure 
of $621,460.25 to ETS for civil, engineering, and existing tower assessment work as presented by 
Mr. Holt. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

050325 BCC Meeting

5



 
B. Hurricane Helene Update 

Mr. Will Holt, Emergency Services Director, provided the following Hurricane Helene update: 
 

“I would like to offer a brief update on the status of recovery in Watauga County from the 
Emergency Services perspective. Before going any further, I would like to personally 
express my deep gratitude to the multitude of individuals and organizations that have 
stepped up to lead the way in various aspects of recovery including rebuilding of our 
citizen’s personal property and businesses. A few key points: 
 
- County staff continue to work with our insurance provider on coverage limits and 

settlements. We have started to receive determination letters and coverage approvals 
for several properties with clarification requested on some projects. 

- Right-of-Way debris removal continues and new debris placement ended March 2nd. 
An extension has been discussed for the ROW process due to the contractor needing 
more time to remove what is existing in the ROW now. 

- Waterway and private property debris removal operations with the Corps of Engineers 
(USACE) has been approved and have begun. Aerostar and TetraTech are leading the 
intake process, Right of Entry acquisition, and site assessments for the Private Property 
Debris Removal (PPDR) program. Bering Strait is the prime contractor for the actual 
debris removal work.  

- Staff completed over 600 assessments on waterways to give multiple State and federal 
partners access to raw data to determine eligibility for Category A (USACE debris 
removal), EWP, or other potential programs being discussed. At time of this report, a 
total of 412 sites have been approved by FEMA. We appreciate the incredible work of 
our Soil and Water staff and those who partnered with them in this process. 

- The OSBM/NCEM Private Road and Bridge program has been partially funded 
through HB47. This program is designed to duplicate the success seen in the southwest 
part of the State during the 2022 TS Fred floods, however continued funding will be 
critical to long term success. 

- Hagerty Consulting is on the ground and working with staff to complete PA projects 
- As a point of success, DSA and he DRC teams have largely completed their work in 

Watauga County but will have staff available for any issues that arise. The DRC is 
transitioning to a Multi-Agency Resource Center (MARC) as FEMA continues to plan 
for long-term recovery. Teams registered thousands of individuals and helped put more 
than $19M at time of report into the hands of our citizens to begin their recovery.  

- The deadline for organizations to apply for Public Assistance (PA) and individuals to 
apply for assistance (IA) have both been extended to April 7th, 2025 

 
The Emergency Services Department is grateful for the partnership with our local, State, 
and federal partners specifically as they focus efforts to get money flowing into our 
community to restore what was lost and also build an even more resilient future.” 

 
The report was given for information only; therefore, no action was required at this time.  

050325 BCC Meeting

6



TAX MATTERS 
A. Tax Management Associates, Inc., Business Personal Property Audit Services Contract 

Mr. Tyler Rash, Tax Administrator, requested approval of additional funds in the amount $23,400 
to Tax Management Associates for property auditing services.  The amount was listed in the budget 
as $2,600 and should have been listed at $26,000.  Once the audits were completed the additional 
revenue would be received to cover the additional expense.  The additional funds would come 
from the administrative contingency fund.   
 
Commissioner Greene, seconded by Commissioner Hodges, moved to approve the additional 
amount of $23,400 to Tax Management Associates for property auditing services. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
B. Unpaid Real Estate Tax Bills  

Mr. Tyler Rash, Tax Administrator, requested authorization to advertise the listing of delinquent 
tax bills that were liens on real property.  Mr. Rash stated that, per the County Attorney, he would 
also check the ad rates with the High Country Press. 
 
Vice-Chairman Castle, seconded by Commissioner Marsh, moved to order the Tax Administrator 
to advertise the liens as requested.   
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
C. Proposed Resolution Establishing the Watauga County Board of Equalization & Review 

Mr. Tyler Rash, Tax Administrator, discussed the scheduling of the FY 2025 Board of Equalization 
and Review (E&R).  The Board may create a special Board of Equalization and Review that will 
serve this spring.  In previous years, the Board of E&R incorporated the County Manager as an 
alternate member.  A proposed resolution was presented for consideration should the Board wish 
to appoint itself and the County Manager (as an alternate member) to the Board of E&R. 
 
Commissioner Greene, seconded by Vice-Chairman Castle, moved to adopt the Resolution 
Establishing the Watauga County Board of Equalization and Review as the five-member County 
Commissioners, each having one vote, and the County Manager, to serve as an alternate member 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
D. Board of Equalization and Review (E&R) Schedule 

Mr. Tyler Rash, Tax Administrator, stated that the recommended convening date for the Board of 
Equalization and Review was Thursday, April 24, 2025, and the Adjournment was recommended 

050325 BCC Meeting

7



for Friday, May 9, 2025, at 5:00 P.M.  Mr. Rash requested meeting dates for the Board of E&R be 
set as well. 
 
After discussion, Commissioner Marsh, seconded by Commissioner Greene, moved to: 
 

• set the convening date as April 24, 2025 at 9:00 A.M. in the Commissioners Conference 
Room 

• set the adjournment date as May 9, 2025, at 5:00 P.M. in the Commissioners Conference 
Room 

• Schedule Board of E&R meeting dates for April 28 & 29, and May 5 & 6, 2025, from 9:00 
A.M. until 5:00 P.M. as needed in the Commissioners Conference Room 

 
VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

A. Proposed Valle Crucis School Change Order #5 

County Manager Geouque requested approval of Change Order #5 for the Valle Crucis Elementary 
School in the amount of $39,488.12.  The County Manager stated that the County was still running 
a negative change order amount and the adoption of this change order will bring the amount to 
$246,111.29. 
 
Chairman Eggers, seconded by Commissioner Hodges, moved to adopt Change Order #5 for Valle 
Crucis School as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
B. Resolution to Partner with The Town of Boone Establishing a Bridge to Link County 

and Town Properties Located at Brookshire Park and Ted Mackorell Soccer Complex   

County Manager Geouque presented a proposed resolution that supports partnering with the Town 
of Boone regarding building a bridge at the Brookshire Park and Ted Mackorell Soccer Complex 
connecting to the Town’s property. 
 
Vice-Chairman Castle, seconded by Commissioner Greene, moved to adopt the resolution as 
presented.   
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
C. Resolution to approve North Carolina Cashflow Loan Agreement and Promissory Note    

County Manager Geouque requested approval of a resolution for the North Carolina Cashflow 
Loan Agreement and Promissory Note.  The program would allow the County to use the monies 

050325 BCC Meeting

8



to front payment of Hurricane Helene damages until FEMA reimbursements are received.  The 
County was currently eligible for $895,477.60 with a 0% interest rate.  The loan was interest free 
and would be a significant tool in the County’s cashflow management.   
 
Vice-Chairman Castle, seconded by Commissioner Hodges, moved to adopt the resolution as 
presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
D. Proposed Amendment to SDR Contract 

County Manager Geouque state that SDR, the County’s contractor for right-of-way debris 
removal, had requested an increase in the “not to exceed” amount of their contract from $2 million 
to $3.8 million.  During discussion as to the reason for the large increase in the “not to exceed” 
amount, Commissioner Marsh expressed concerns that the County would be billed the full amount.  
County Manager Geouque stated that the projected amount at the beginning of the project was 
$5.3 million and Debris Tech was monitoring to ensure that SDR was only billing for time worked. 
 
After discussion, Chairman Eggers, seconded by Commissioner Hodges, moved to approve to 
increase the “not to exceed” amount by an additional $1.8 million in the SDR contract for debris 
removal. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Eggers, Castle, Greene, Hodges) 
 Nay-1(Marsh) 

 
E. Public Hearing Request to Allow Citizen Comment on the Potential Repealing of the 

Fire Appendices  

County Manager Geouque stated that, per commissioner request, a public hearing has been 
requested for May 6, 2025, to allow for citizen comment on the potential to repeal the fire 
appendices.   
 
Vice-Chairman Castle, seconded by Commissioner Marsh, moved to schedule a public hearing on 
May 6, 2025, at 5:30 P.M. to allow for citizen comment on the potential to repeal the fire 
appendices. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
F. April Meeting Schedule 

County Manager Geouque recommended, due to the upcoming holiday, cancelling the second 
meeting in April.  Should a meeting be necessary, a special called meeting could be scheduled.  If 
canceled, the next regular meeting would be on Tuesday, May 6, 2025, at 5:30 P.M. 
 

050325 BCC Meeting

9



Commissioner Marsh, seconded by Vice-Chairman Castle, moved to cancel the April 15, 2025 
meeting. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
G. Announcements 

County Manager Geouque announced the following: 
 

• Caldwell Community College and Technical Institute (CCC&TI) invites the Board to 
attend their 60th Anniversary Sunset Celebration on Tuesday, April 29, 2025 from 5:00 to 
7:00 P.M. at the Watauga Campus Student Services Center located on Community College 
Drive, Boone.  Anita will be happy to RSVP on your behalf. 

 
• The UNC School of Government will present an Ethics for Elected Officials course via 

Zoom on Thursday, May 22, 2025, from 10:00 A.M. to 12:00 P.M.  The course will be live 
and will be broadcast in the Commissioners’ Board Room.  The course is required to be 
taken by all Commissioners by December 2025.  A group registration will be done for 
those who plan to attend in the Board Room and separate registrations will be done for 
those who will need to view it from a different location.  Please let Anita know if you can 
attend.   

 
H. Boards and Commissions 

County Manager Geouque stated that Mr. Jeff Greene was unanimously approved to be submitted 
for consideration of appointment to the Watauga Medical Center Board of Trustees.  This was a 
first reading and, therefore, no action was required. 

CLOSED SESSION 
At 6:46 P.M., Commissioner Marsh, seconded by Commissioner Hodges, moved to enter Closed 
Session to discuss Attorney/Client Matters, per G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3), including discussion of 
29 CVS 117, and Land Acquisition, per G. S. 143-318.11(a)(5)(i). 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
Commissioner Greene, seconded by Commissioner Marsh, moved to resume the open meeting at 
7:35 P.M. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
At 7:35 P.M. Chairman Eggers declared a recess. 
 

050325 BCC Meeting

10



At 8:19 P.M., Commissioner Greene, seconded by Vice-Chairman Castle, moved to reconvene the 
meeting. 
 
At 8:19 P.M., Commissioner Marsh, seconded by Commissioner Hodges, moved to re-enter 
Closed Session to continue to discuss Attorney/Client Matters, per G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3), 
including discussion of 29 CVS 117, and Land Acquisition, per G. S. 143-318.11(a)(5)(i). 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
Vice-Chairman Castle, seconded by Commissioner Hodges, moved to resume the open meeting at 
9:36 P.M. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

ADJOURN 
Commissioner Hodges, seconded by Chairman Marsh, moved to adjourn the meeting at 9:37 P.M. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
 
Braxton Eggers, Chairman 
 
ATTEST:  Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 
 
 

050325 BCC Meeting

11



Blank Page 
 
 

050325 BCC Meeting

12



AGENDA ITEM 3: 

APPROVAL OF THE MAY 6, 2025, AGENDA 
 
 
  

050325 BCC Meeting

13



Blank Page 
 
 

050325 BCC Meeting

14



AGENDA ITEM 4: 

PUBLIC COMMENT  

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Public Comment will last up to 1-hour dependent upon the number of speakers. 
 

 
 

050325 BCC Meeting

15



Blank Page 
 
 

050325 BCC Meeting

16



AGENDA ITEM 5: 

PUBLIC HEARING TO ALLOW CITIZEN COMMENT ON A PROPOSAL TO REPEAL A 
2024 AMENDMENT TO THE WATAUGA COUNTY BUILDING CODE ORDINANCE 
WHICH ADDED THE WORDING “AND ALL APPENDICES THEREIN” 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Per commissioner request, a public hearing has been scheduled for May 6, 2025 to allow citizen 
comment on the potential repeal of the fire appendices.   
 
After the public hearing is closed, the Board may repeal the fire appendices, schedule a work 
session, remand to the Planning Board for discussion and consideration, establish a committee to 
review and make recommendations, or take any other action they deem appropriate.     
 
Staff seeks direction from the Board. 
 
 
  

050325 BCC Meeting

17



PUBLIC SERVICE ANNOUNCEMENT 

PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE 

 

The Watauga County Board of Commissioners will hold a public hearing to allow citizen comment 

on a proposal to repeal a 2024 amendment to the Watauga County Building Code Ordinance which 

added the wording “and all appendices therein.” 

The proposal would repeal the amendment by removing the wording from the Watauga 

County Building Code Ordinance as below: 

Section 1-2.1 Fire Code Adopted 

On July 1, 1991, or other date established by the North Carolina building code 

council, the Standard Fire Prevention code – 1988 edition and all appendices 

therein as adopted by the Building Code Council and as amended … 

The public hearing will be held on Tuesday, May 6, 2025, at 5:30 P.M. in the Commissioners’ 

Board Room located in the Watauga County Administration Building at 814 West King Street, 

Boone, North Carolina.  Interested parties are encouraged to attend.  For information or questions 

please call 828-264-4235. 

 
 
       Braxton Eggers, Chairman 
       Watauga County Board of Commissioners 
 

050325 BCC Meeting

18



050325 BCC Meeting

19



050325 BCC Meeting

20



050325 BCC Meeting

21



050325 BCC Meeting

22



050325 BCC Meeting

23



050325 BCC Meeting

24



050325 BCC Meeting

25



050325 BCC Meeting

26



050325 BCC Meeting

27



050325 BCC Meeting

28



050325 BCC Meeting

29



050325 BCC Meeting

30



050325 BCC Meeting

31



050325 BCC Meeting

32



050325 BCC Meeting

33



050325 BCC Meeting

34



050325 BCC Meeting

35



050325 BCC Meeting

36



050325 BCC Meeting

37



050325 BCC Meeting

38



050325 BCC Meeting

39



050325 BCC Meeting

40



050325 BCC Meeting

41



050325 BCC Meeting

42



050325 BCC Meeting

43



050325 BCC Meeting

44



050325 BCC Meeting

45



050325 BCC Meeting

46



050325 BCC Meeting

47



050325 BCC Meeting

48



050325 BCC Meeting

49



050325 BCC Meeting

50



050325 BCC Meeting

51



050325 BCC Meeting

52



050325 BCC Meeting

53



050325 BCC Meeting

54



050325 BCC Meeting

55



050325 BCC Meeting

56



050325 BCC Meeting

57



050325 BCC Meeting

58



050325 BCC Meeting

59



050325 BCC Meeting

60



050325 BCC Meeting

61



050325 BCC Meeting

62



AGENDA ITEM 6: 

WATAUGA MEDICS MERGER REQUEST 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Craig Sullivan, Watauga Medics Owner, will request the Board approve the merger with 
Priority Ambulance based out of Knoxville Tennessee.  The current contract with Watauga Medics 
expires December 31, 2025.   
 
Staff would recommend the Board consult with the County Attorney in closed session to seek legal 
advice prior to any Board decision. 
 
Staff seeks direction from the Board.   
 
  

050325 BCC Meeting

63



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF WATAUGA 

AMBULANCE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 

THIS AMBULANCE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT (hereinafter "Agreement). Is made 
and entered onto this the l 5

t. day of January 2018 by and between WATAUGA 
COUNTY, a body politic, organized and existing under and by vi1iue of the laws of the 
State ofN01ih Carolina (hereinafter the County'), and WATAUGA MEDICS, INC. , a 
North Carolina corporation, (hereinafter "Franchisee"). 

WHEREAS, effective October 4, 1999, the Watauga County Board of Commissioners, 
by authority contained in NC.G.S, 153A-250, adopted titled Watauga County Ambulance 
Franchise Ordinance' (hereinafter "the Ordinance")' and 

WHEREAS, County and Franchisee executed an Ambulance Franchise Agreement dated 
November 16, 2004 pursuant to the Watauga County Ambulance Franchise Ordinance, 
pursuant to the authority granted to the County by NCGS 153-250; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to said Ordinance, the County issued a Request For Proposal 
(hereinafter "the RFP") soliciting bids and specifying certain minimum conditions of any 
franchise to be issued pursuant thereto; and 

WHEREAS, Craig J. Sullivan on behalf of Watauga Medics, Inc. submitted a written bid 
entitled Bid Proposal for Watauga County Ambulance Service ' (hereinafter the Bid") 
pursuant to said RFP; and 

WHEREAS, the County, at its November 1, 2004 meeting resolved to accept the Bid 
Option 3-1 contained in said bid, to wit: that the bidder will provide service (as fmther 
specified below) with the County to provide an annual subsidy of as set forth below in 
monthly installment; 

WHEREAS, at the February 20, 2007, meeting of the Watauga County Board of County 
Commissioners, The County agreed to amend the agreement to clarify and restated the 
subsidy payment that were paid or are to be paid pursuant to the agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the parties have discussed an extension ofthe agreement between the 
County and Franchisee in an effort to lock-in costs to the County and allow for the 
Franchisee to expand his operations to improve services in Watauga County. 

050325 BCC Meeting

64



NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual benefits and 
obligations set forth below, the County and the Franchisee agree as follows: 

1. The County does hereby grant unto Franchisee a non-exclusive franchise for 
the operation of an ambulance service for the provision of emergency and non
emergency medical transport services, in accordance with the Ordinance, the RFP, the 
bid and this Agreement for a period of seven years. 

2. This franchise may not be sold, assigned or transfened nor may it in any way 
vest in any person, firm or corporation, other than the Franchisee and any such sale, 
transfer or assignment shall cause this franchise to terminate immediately, at the opinion 
of Watauga County. 

3. Any change in legal or equitable ownership of Franchisee its corporate shares, 
or any of its equipment shall immediately terminate the Franchise, at the option of 
Watauga County. 

4. The initial term of the Franchise shall be from 12:00 AM. on January 1, 2018 
and through and including the 31st day of December, 2025. Either party, for any reason, 
may with or without cause terminate this agreement and the Franchise upon one hundred 
eighty (180) calendar days written notice to the other party, unless sooner terminated for 
reasons set forth in the Ordinance or by agreement of the parties hereto. 

5. At the end of the aforesaid term, unless the parties agree otherwise in writing or 
either party has given notice of termination as aforesaid, the Franchise and all of the 
terms of this Agreement (subject to any amendments as may be entered into) shall be 
automatically renewed for continuing one year terms. 

6. The Franchise shall provide all personnel, vehicles, supplies and equipment to 
provide all emergency and non-emergency ambulance service necessary in all parts of 
Watauga County on a 24 hour per day, 7 day per week basis, at not less than an EMT
Paramedic level of service (except so long as an agreement for such acceptable to the 
County is in place, the Franchise may provide ambulance service to the Flat Springs area 
of Avery County in exchange for Avery County's providing pursuant to agreement with 
Franchise ambulance service to the Town of Beech Mountain in Watauga County. It is 
understood that each ambulance transport that occurs in Avery county as the result ofthe 
above agreement allows the franchisee to bill the patient and to bill the County an 
additional $500.00) Each ambulance of the Franchisee shall be available to render 
assistance to all portions of Watauga County. 

7. Franchisee shall keep (3) two-wheel drive ambulances and (2) four-wheel drive 
ambulances fully equipped, licensed and available for emergency and non- emergency 
service at all times, subject to routine maintenance down time. Franchisee shall keep 
three of the ambulances manned and available on a 24 hour per day, 7 day per week basis 
and a fourth manned and available nine hours per day, Monday through Saturday (6) days 
per week. Beginning January 1, 2018 an additional ambulance operating 12 hours per 
day will also be manned and available 7 days per week. Totaling 5 ambulance operating 
during peak time hours and reducing to 3 ambulances manned and available during non 
peak times. Not less than two (2) ambulances will be kept within the County at all times 
for services pursuant to this Agreement, one of which will be manned and the other of 
which will be manned or will have personnel on call for immediate service. Each 

050325 BCC Meeting

65



ambulance necessary to meet the foregoing requirements shall have less than 50,000 
miles on it at the time initially put in service by Franchisee. The Franchisee will 
immediately notify the county in writing of any additions or deletions the to its inventory 
of operational ambulances. 

8. The Franchisee shall maintain not less than two (3) bases, (2) of which will be 
provided by the County as set fmth below. The Franchisee must bear all responsibility for 
finding other station(s) and the costs associated with acquiring, equipping, and 
maintaining such. 

9. Franchisee ' s first base of operations will be located at the facilities owned by 
the County at 921 West King Street. Boone, North Carolina 28607, or such other location 
as may be provided by the County. The County will make available, at no charge to 
Franchisee, said the facilities cunently located at 921 West King Street, Boone, North 
Carolina 28607, specifically consisting of 5,263 square feet, including a garage, offices, 
sleeping area and a training room. The County shall provide propetiy and casualty hazard 
insurance for the structure at said location. The Franchisee must bear all utilities, 
maintenance, medical supplies, equipment and other necessary expenses associated with 
said facilities provided by the County. Franchisee ' s obligation to provide maintenance to 
the structure shall be limited to repairs of ordinary wear and tear to the reasonable 
satisfaction of the County. Franchisee' s two propane heaters and the lift located in the 
bay area ofthe building shall remain the property of Franchisee, so long as Franchisee 
repairs any damage to the building caused by their removal. 

10. The County will provide a second base of operations, on the western end of 
the County to be located at US Hwy 421 & US Hwy 321 N01th, Vilas, North Carolina 
28692 with similar anangement as above. 

11. The Franchisee shall maintain a 3rd base to be located at 133 Longvue Dr. 
Boone North Carolina and the Franchisee shall be solely responsible for providing all 
things necessary for operations of the service at the 3rd. base. Franchisee shall be solely 
responsible for providing all things necessary for operation of the service at the 3rd. base, 
including but not limited to the building, utilities, maintenance, medical supplies, 
equipment and necessary operational expenses associated with the facilities. 

12. Each ambulance used by Franchisee must be in compliance with all applicable 
Federal, State, and local laws relating to personnel, health, safety, equipment, vehicle 
design, and sanitation. Franchisee shall keep the County provided with a copy of the 
current State certification for each ambulance owned or operated by Franchisee. 

13. The Franchisee shall be responsible for all future capital purchase and all 
operational, including (but not limited to) salaries, employee benefits and expenses, 
insurance, mobile operational costs, and all other fees, expenses, and charges necessary to 
remain in compliance with the County' s ordinance and the franchise granted to the 
Franchisee. 

050325 BCC Meeting

66



14. The Franchisee shall provide the county with a list of all of its equipment 
which is in service, on not less than an annual basis, and the Franchisee shall assure that 
all of its equipment in use will be removed from service once it becomes obsolete or 
needs to be replaced due to normal wear and tear. 

15. Each ambulance of Franchisee shall be equipped with a multi-channel radio 
capable of talking to dispatch centers and other agencies. Frequencies shall be assigned 
by the Communications Center designated by the County. Franchisee shall relay all 
ambulance movements to the Communications Center designated by the County, via two
way radio. 

16. The Franchisee shall assure that its EMS personnel have access to operational 
Franchisee-issued pagers, or other communication devices along with accurate phone 
lists are on file to notify said personnel if the regular squads of the Franchisee are unable 
to handle the volume of calls that may come in from time to time. 

17. The Franchisee shall at all times meet the following performance standards: 

a. The average emergency response time for an ambulance, calculated 
on a Monthly basis, shall not exceed ten minutes. 

b. The Franchisee shall place no required ambulance in service for initial 
operation that has more than 50,000 miles. 

18. The Franchisee shall not allow any paramedic to practice in Watauga County 
until he or she has passed an oral examination given by a panel approved by the Medical 
Director along with any other reasonable standards as set fmih by the Medical Director. 
It will be the responsibility of the County to coordinate with the Franchisee to ensure a 
qualified Medical Director remains active in the system. 

19. The Franchisee shall enter into and assure the existence of mutual aid 
agreements with ambulance services in counties adjoining Watauga County to provide 
assistance in the event of disaster or other special need, said agreements to be at the sole 
expense of the Franchisee. Additionally, the Franchisee shall implement and keep in 
place a Reserve Program, creating a county-wide manpower bank to be available in the 
event of a disaster or other special need. All training will be open to Reserves and any 
other individuals with NC Basic Credential, or higher, who also meet Franchisees other 
reasonably developed standards. The Franchisee shall make all reasonable efforts to 
provide "ride time" to said reserves, to keep their skills current. 

20. Franchisee shall enter into mutual aid agreements to have and make available 
assistance of and to all volunteer rescue squads in the County when requested by the 
County, the Franchisee or the volunteer rescue squads. 

21. The Franchisee shall make its resources available to Watauga County 
Emergency Management Office during its emergency activities, and during any declared 
State of Emergency shall work in conjunction with the Emergency Operations Center. 

050325 BCC Meeting

67



22. The Franchisee shall oversee a First Responder program, which the 
Franchisee assist the local fire departments with the needs of the program. The 
Franchisee shall assist in the development and implementation of operating guidelines for 
the program, and shall restock the supplies (not to include capital equipment or any drugs 
such as epi pens) used in the services of the First Responder program. Further, the 
Franchisee shall coordinate continuing education requests and other training for all First 
Responders, as appropriate, All of the foregoing shall be provided to the program and 
First Responders at no cost to the First Responders or their sponsoring agency or 
agencies, all with no additional cost to the County. 

23. The Franchisee shall operate on a fee for services basis, and shall only issue 
the following charges (when incurred) at the following rates, which are hereby approved 
by the County: 

a. 

b. 

c. 

d. 
e. 

Rates for BLS calls: 

Rates for ALS calls: (non-emergency) 
(Emergency) 
ALS II: 

Charge per mile: 

Waiting time per hour (after first hour) 
No transport calls: 

$300.00 

$325.00 
$415.00 
$550.00 
$9.50 

$25.00 

A charge of $50.00 is authorized for no transport calls when Franchisee responds to assist 
patients who just need assistance or patients who have initiated a 911 call and have 
changed their mind once Franchisee arrived. No charge under this subsection may be 
assessed when a 911 call is made by a bystander without the request of the injured party. 

No other fees , expenses, or charges may be made without prior Resolution of the 
County' s Board of Commissioners approving such. It will be acceptable as the allowable 
rates for service as set forth each year by Medicare, Medicaid and Private insurance are 
adjusted to make minor changes in charges to maximize the reimbursement rates 
available with the County Managers approval. 

24. The Franchisee shall be responsible for billing and collection of its fees, 
charges and expenses. The Franchisee must submit for payment from, third party payers 
and accept assignment of Medicare and Medicaid Franchisee shall maintain accurate 
records of all charges and reimbursements from Medicare and other sources of all 
charges pursuant to the forgoing authorized increases, and shall compile and maintain 
such information in a form useful to the County, which information shall be shared from 
time to time with the County, as the County may desire. 

25. Franchisee shall maintain all records required by Sect XII of the Ordinance 
and shall submit to the County by the 15111

• of the month following each quarter a data 
sheet containing all of the infmmation specified in subsection f of said Section of the 
Ordinance. The Franchisee shall submit an annual report containing all of the 

050325 BCC Meeting

68



information required by said Section and further specified by subsection g of said Section 
by the 15th. day of the month following the last quarter of each year. The Franchisee shall 
maintain the aforesaid records in an organized fashion, and allow the county full access 
to said information as the County deems appropriate. By the 15th. of May of each year, 
the Franchisee shall submit to the County manager a budget of how it intends to spend 
the County' s funds in the upcoming fiscal year, and within ninety (90) days of the end of 
the Franchisee ' s fiscal year, the Franchisee shall furnish the County a full and complete 
certified audit of Franchisee' s operations conducting by a CPA in accordance with 
generally accepted auditing standards of Franchisee ' s operations, which shall include a 
fully audited financial statement of the Franchisee. The Franchisees fiscal year shall be 
from 1 January to 31 December of each year. 

26. Each year, Franchisee shall provide the County a detailed explanation of its 
billing policies, sufficient to allow County to fully understand the billing methods and 
practices of the Franchisee. 

27. Franchisee shall fully allow the County to inspect all records, premises and 
equipment of the Franchisee at any time in order to confirm and insure compliance with 
the ordinance and the franchise granted herein. 

28. In providing ambulance service as described herein the Franchisee shall 
comply with all laws of the United States, the State of North Carolina and the County of 
Watauga, including rules and regulations promulgated by the Medical Care Commission 
and the NC Medical Board, and resolutions and ordinances of the Watauga County Board 
of Commissioners. Further, the Franchisee shall abide by all applicable US and North 
Carolina Labor laws, including, but not limited to, Occupational Safety and Health 
regulations, Fair Labor Standards Act and the Americans with Disabilities Act and 
regulations pursuant thereto. The County shall have the right to inspect all records 
pertaining to these labor laws and ensure compliance by the Franchisee. The Franchisee 
shall maintain records on all employee training conducted pursuant to Occupational 
Safety and Health regulations and shall make these available to the County upon request 

29. Franchisee shall maintain in place an escrow account, a surety bond, an 
irrevocable letter of credit, or other guarantee or undertaking satisfactory to the County 
attorney, in an amount equal to the amount of the contract subsidy applicable to any one 
hundred eighty (180) day period following the date such obligation may arise to assure 
payment to the County for any liability of the Franchisee to the County arising out ofthis 
Agreement, of the Ordinance, or of Franchisee ' s operation, and to pay for any substitute 
performance the County may cause to be provided upon Franchisees default in 
performance hereunder or under the Ordinance. 

30. The Franchisee agrees and acknowledges that the above-referenced facilities 
of the County located at 921 West King Street, Boone, North Carolina are fully adequate 
facilities for the housing of their base operation at said location. 

31. For the period of this agreement, the County shall prepay to Franchisee an 
annual subsidy in monthly installments as follows: 

Jan. 1, 2017 - Dec. 31 , 2017 $968,258.28 

Jan. 1, 2018 - Dec. 31 , 2018 $1 ,188,258 .28 (Increase for additiona/12 how· crew. CPI 
adjustment will be waived) 

050325 BCC Meeting

69



Jan. 1, 2019- Dec. 31 , 2019 Previous Years Amount+ CPI adjustment 

Jan. 1, 2020- Dec. 31 , 2020 Previous Years Amount+ CPI adjustment 

Jan. 1, 2021 - Dec. 31 , 2021 Previous Years Amount+ CPI adjustment 

Jan. 1, 2022- Dec. 31, 2022 Previous Years Amount+ CPI adjustment 

Jan. 1, 2023- Dec. 31 , 2023 Previous Years Amount+ CPI adjustment 

Jan. 1, 2024 - Dec. 31 , 2024 Previous Years Amount + CPI adjustment 

Jan. 1, 2025 - Dec. 31 , 2025 Previous Years Amount+ CPI adjustment 

This amount to be adjusted by the CPI as explained below. Each year thereafter the 
previous years amount will be adjusted as explained below. 

a. 60 percent of the adjustment shall reflect the annual increase or decrease of the 
Consumer Price Index (CPI), South Urban Size C, as published by the US 
Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics. 

b. 20 percent of the adjustment shall reflect the annual increase or decrease of 

the CPI, Medical Care Services as published by the US Depatiment of Labor, 
Bureau of Labor Statistics. 

c. 20 percent of the adjustment shall reflect the annual increase or decrease of the 
CPI, Transp01iation, as published by the US Department if Labor, Bureau of 
Labor Statistics. 

In the event the CPI components produce a negative adjustment once totaled, the 
Subsidy amount will not be adjusted. In the event the CPI components produce a 
percentage greater than 6% up to 1 0% (For example, if the CPI escalator is 
computer at 7.4% the annual increase would be 6.7% or 6% + .50 x 1.4% = 6.7%. 
Any amount over 10% will not be considered for adjustment ie the maximum 
adjustment will be 8% or 6% + .50%x 4= 8%). 

32. The County will calculate the adjustment based upon the most recent 
November annual report of Franchisee as compared to the rep01i ofthe previous 
November. (For example, the January 1, 2015 adjustment will reflect the CPI changes 
between November 2013 and November 2014.) 

33 . Franchisee shall at all times during the existence of the Franchise, keep in full 
force and effect the insurance coverage as required by Section X of the Ordinance 
entitled "Insurance" and all insurance required by law, including liability insurance on its 
vehicles and workers ' compensation coverage for its personnel. Franchisee shall provide 
proof of coverage to the county and to assure that each insurance policy contains 
provisions that assure that the County receives at least 90 days prior notice from each 
carrier of any lapses, cancellations, denials, changes or limitations in coverage. The 
County shall be shown as an additional insured on all of Franchisee ' s liability insurance. 

34. The Franchisee shall indemnify and hold harmless the County and its officers 
and employees from and against all suits, actions, liability, claims, demands, judgments, 

050325 BCC Meeting

70



recoveries or expenses, including court costs and attorney's fees, against or incurred by 
the County on account of or in any way connected with or arising from any claim of 
injury, loss or damage which arises out of or is in any manner connected with 
Franchisee' s operations; including, but not limited to any claim or injury, loss or damage, 
suit, action, liability, claim, demand, judgment, recovery, or expense caused or alleged to 
be caused in whole or in part by any negligent act, omission, error, professional error, 
mistake, accident or other fault of the Franchisee, any subcontractor of the Franchisee, or 
an officer, employee or agent of the Franchisee. 

3 5. Franchisee is to provide ambulance service as an independent contractor and 
neither Franchise nor any of its personnel shall be an employee, agent or representative of 
the County in any way. 

36. The Franchisee and its agents, contractors and subcontractors shall not 
discriminate on the basis of race, color, creed, national origin, ancestry, age, sex, religion 
or disability in any policy or practice and Franchisee shall assure that any agreements or 
practices it enters into or engages in expressly provide for such nondiscrimination. 

37. This Agreement is entered into pursuant to the RFP which Franchisee 
acknowledges; to the Ordinance and all amendments as may be made thereto, which 
Franchisee is and will remain familiar with and agrees to fully abide by; to the bid by 
Watauga Medics, Inc. , and to the County's resolutions of November 1, 2004 accepting 
said bid. Except to the extent this Agreement imposes standards above the minimum 
standards specified in the Ordinance, in the event of any inconsistency among or between 
the foregoing, the Ordinance shall control and as between this Agreement and the RFP, 
the Bid, and the Resolution, this Agreement shall control, but all of the terms of the 
aforesaid documents not inconsistent with the other documents shall remain in and have 
full force and effect. 

38. Should any portion of this Agreement be ruled or determined invalid, such 
invalidity shall not effect the enforceability of the remaining portions hereof. This 
Agreement shall not be amended or modified except in writing. signed by all patties 
hereto, with the County ' s consent to such modification to be only by prior resolution of 
its Board of Commissioners. 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, the said patties hereto have hereunto caused this 
instrument to be signed in their names by their duly authorized officers. 

:t;Mtt 
President 

Board of Commissioners 

Attes~~ 
Clerk to the Board Corporate Secretary 

050325 BCC Meeting

71



Blank Page 
 
 

050325 BCC Meeting

72



AGENDA ITEM 7: 

OLD COVE CREEK SCHOOL FACILITY FEASIBILITY STUDY AND CONCEPT PLAN  

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Justin Church, BREC, will present the feasibility study and concept plan for the Old Cove 
Creek School facility.  Estimated cost for the project including architecture and engineering 
services is $1,508,000.  Funds would come from insurance, FEMA reimbursements, grants, 
Watauga County TDA, and administrative contingency.   
 
Board action is required to approve the plan as presented and contract with BREC to be responsible 
for architecture, engineering, bid documents and bidding, construction documents and 
administration, and permitting.  The Board would further direct staff and the County Attorney to 
draft and execute a contract with BREC.   
  

050325 BCC Meeting

73



 

  
www.breceng.com 
(336) 844-4088 

 

 

April 23, 2025 

 

Watauga County Maintenance 

Attn: Robert Marsh 

274 Winklers Creek Rd. Suite B 

Boone, NC 28607 

 

RE:  Old Cove Creek School Sports Facility Feasibility Study and Concept Plan – Watauga County, NC 

 

To Whom it May Concern, 

 

1. Introduction 

Blue Ridge Environmental Consultants, PA (BREC), a Stratus-owned company and licensed NC Professional Engineering Firm, is 

pleased to present this Feasibility Study and Concept Plan for the redevelopment and repair of the Old Cove Creek School Sports 

Facility in Sugar Grove, North Carolina. With a strong understanding of the site’s legacy and its importance to the community, this 

effort seeks to restore, enhance, and modernize recreational opportunities while ensuring regulatory compliance, cost efficiency, 

and long-term sustainability. 

 
2. Site History 

Old Cove Creek School is a historically significant site with deep community roots in Watauga County. The surrounding grounds 

have long served as a hub for youth sports and recreational activities. Over time, wear, environmental changes, and increased 

usage have highlighted the need for revitalization of the park infrastructure, drainage, and amenities to meet modern standards 

and to increase public enjoyment. The recent damages of Hurricane Helene have caused immense damage to the site. This 

document is in response to that event. 

 
3. Facility Components and Anticipated Costs 

BREC has developed a concept plan and preliminary construction estimate using regional cost data, existing site conditions, and 

materials assumptions. A high-level estimate is found below the concept design to help guide funding and phasing decisions. 

 

COMPONENT COST REPAIR OR MITIGATION 

Trail - Asphalt $59,000 Repair 

Exercise Equipment $18,000 Enhancement 

Creek Access $2,000 Repair 

ADA Fishing Pier $22,000 Enhancement 

Benches $12,000 Repair 

Wildlife Viewing Area $3,000 Enhancement 

Stage Area $42,000 Enhancement 

Athletic Field -SOD $100,000 Repair 

Playground $100,000 Repair 

Basketball Court $45,000 Repair 

Pickleball Courts $50,000 Repair 

Picnic Shelter $50,000 Enhancement 

Restroom Facility $100,000 Enhancement 

Parking Areas $250,000 Enhancement 

Stream Restoration/Bank Stabilization $335,000 Mitigation/Repair 

Stormwater System $60,000 Repair 

Rough Site Grading and Reseeding $75,000 Repair 

050325 BCC Meeting

74



 

 

TOTAL $1,323,000  

 
4. Professional Fees and Soft Costs 

BREC proposes to self-perform all professional design services under a consolidated lump sum fee, which includes the following 

disciplines: 

• Civil Engineering 

• Hydraulic Engineering 

• Structural Engineering 

• Electrical Engineering 

• Plumbing Engineering 

• Architecture 

Total Lump Sum Fee: $185,000 

This includes design bid documents, final construction documents, and permitting. 

 
5. Anticipated Final Design Requirements 

Final construction documents will require collaboration across the following disciplines: 

• Civil Engineering (site layout, grading, utilities) 

• Hydraulic Engineering (stormwater/floodplain coordination) 

• Structural Engineering (pavilion, foundations) 

• Electrical Engineering (lighting, outlets, infrastructure) 

• Plumbing Engineering (wellhouse, fixtures) 

• Architecture (layout refinement, ADA compliance, community use considerations) 

 
6. Entitlement and Permitting 

It is anticipated that the following permits will be required for construction: 

• Floodplain Development Permit – Watauga County 

• Section 401 Water Quality Certification – NC Division of Water Resources 

• Section 404 Permit – U.S. Army Corps of Engineers 

• Erosion Control Permit – NCDEQ (Note: Watauga County has a local program but cannot approve work on County 

projects) 

• Building Permits – Structures, Electrical, Plumbing 

Permitting Duration Estimate: Up to 60 days from submittal 

 
7. Timeline 

If authorized in May 2025, the following schedule is proposed: 

• Bid Document Completion: August 1, 2025 

• Construction Award: Late September 2025 

• Grading/Earthwork Completion: By Christmas 2025 – With Limited Public Access and Usage 

• Planned Facility Reopening: May 2026 

This timeline ensures optimal weather conditions for major construction and allows time for planting and surface finishing prior 

to spring opening. 

 
8. Construction Options 

BREC is prepared to support Watauga County in evaluating and coordinating construction delivery methods. The County may 

consider one of the following models: 

• Design–Bid–Build (traditional and competitive, slower delivery) 

• Construction Manager at Risk (CMAR) (collaborative, cost-control oriented) 

• Design–Build (fast-track, single-contract solution) 

Each method has trade-offs related to control, speed, and pricing. We are available to help the County evaluate and select the 

most appropriate delivery method. 

050325 BCC Meeting

75



 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

 

Derek Goddard – President 

BREC, PA 

1520 Meadowview Dr. 

Wilkesboro, NC 28697 

 

050325 BCC Meeting

76



OLD
 COVE CREEK SCHOOL

SHOP

GYM

AE ZONE

AE ZONEFLOODWAY

PARKING (33)

STORMWATER BIO-RETENTION
AREA & WILDLIFE VIEWING AREA

WITH INTERPRETIVE SIGNAGE

BENCHES

20 x 30 STAGE
CONCRETE PAD

908 L.F. OF COVE CREEK IMPACTED

COVE CREEK

CROSS VANE

J-HOOK

PARKING (52)

DALE ADAMS RD

GEORGES GAP RD

OL
D 

US
 H

W
Y 

42
1

WASTE WATER SYSTEM
LANDSCAPE & FENCE

(3) 44 x 22
PICKLEBALL
COURTS

10 x 30 RESTROOM
FACILITY

BANK RESTORATION ±230'

CREEK ACCESS VIA
EMBEDDED STEPS

20 x 40 PICNIC
SHELTER

KEITH ORAVITS
PARCEL ID: 1972960543000
DEED BK/PG: 2250/755
ACRES: 3.50

WATAUGA COUNTY
PARCEL ID: 1972868255000
DEED BK/PG: 391/467
ACRES: 7.00

ANDREW HARSEY
PARCEL ID: 1972855989000
DEED BK/PG: 2133/624
ACRES: 1.13

WATAUGA COUNTY
PARCEL ID: 1972858876000
DEED BK/PG: 391/467
ACRES: 2.00

BRUSHFIRE WOODCRAFT, LLC

PARCEL ID: 1972856892000

DEED BK/PG: 2133/620

ACRES: 0.14

WATAUGA COUNTY

PARCEL ID: 1972950919000

DEED BK/PG: 391/467

ACRES: 1.00

WATAUGA COUNTY
PARCEL ID: 1972868255000
DEED BK/PG: 391/467
ACRES: 7.00

SUSAN DUNN TRUST
PARCEL ID: 1972855784000
DEED BK/PG: 1861/447
ACRES: 0.75

SUSAN DUNN TRUST
PARCEL ID: 1972856644000
DEED BK/PG: 1861/447
ACRES: 0.80

THEODOOR VISSER
PARCEL ID: 1972857406000
DEED BK/PG: 1923/76
ACRES: 4.46

NE
W PL

AY
GR

OU
ND

11
5 x

 45

CREEK ACCESS VIA
EMBEDDED STEPS

STAGE ACCESS
ROAD (CONC.)

ADA FISHING PIER

NEW ASPHALT

NEW ASPHALT

ALL FIELD GRADING
TO FALL @ 2% TO
COVE CREEK

TRAIL

EXERCISE EQUIPMENT

94
 x 

50
 CO

UR
T

(BA
SK

ET
BA

LL
)

AD
JU

ST
AB

LE
 G

OAL
S

8' ASPHALT PATH
± 1,220 FT LONG

ATHLETIC FIELD

145 x 300

STORMWATER INLET

RAISED CROSSWALK

RAISED CROSSWALK

PRELIMINARY

SCALE:

SHEET:

(H)
(V)

DRAWN BY:

APPROVED BY:

PROJECT NUMBER:

© COPYRIGHT 2025 BY BREC, P.A., ALL RIGHTS RESERVED.  THIS PLAN MAY NOT BE RE-USED, SOLD, LOANED, OR GIVEN TO OTHERS.  REPRODUCTION OR PHOTOCOPYING OF THIS PLAN WITHOUT THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF BREC, P.A. IS PROHIBITED AND IS A VIOLATION OF FEDERAL COPYRIGHT LAWS, PUNISHABLE BY FINES UP TO $100,000 PER OFFENSE.

0

DO
 N

OT
 S

CA
LE

 - 
PL

AN
S 

MU
ST

 B
E 

RE
CE

IV
ED

 A
S 

A 
CO

MP
LE

TE
 S

ET

DATE: REVISIONS:

PREPARED FOR:

SHEET SIZE:

15
20

 M
EA

DO
W

VI
EW

 D
RI

VE
W

ILK
ES

BO
RO

, N
C 

28
69

7
33

6.8
44

.40
88

   
htt

p:/
/br

ec
.bi

z

OL
D 

CO
VE

 C
RE

EK
 S

CH
OO

L
SP

OR
TS

 F
AC

ILI
TY

CONCEPTUAL PLAN

24"x36"

0980062025

J.EDWARDS

J.CHURCH

1" = 60'

60 6030 120 C100

04/08/2025

VICINITY MAP (NTS)

*SITE

DALE
 ADAMS RD

GEORGE GAP RD

GEORGE GAP BRANCH

COVE CREEK

OL
D 

US
 H

WY 4
21

- ALL STRUCTURES AND PADS WILL BE RAISED TO ABOVE BFE
- ALL STORMWATER DRAINAGE FROM PAVED AREAS TO BE

INSTALLED AND DIRECTED TO STORMWATER BIORETENTION
AREA - 24" HDPE

FACILITY COMPONENTS

- TRAIL
- EXERCISE EQUIPMENT
- CREEK ACCESS
- ADA FISHING PIER
- BENCHES
- WILDLIFE VIEWING AREA
- STAGE AREA
- ATHLETIC FIELD
- ASPHALT PATH
- PLAYGROUND
- BASKETBALL COURT
- PICKLEBALL COURTS
- PICNIC SHELTER
- RESTROOM FACILITY
- PARKING AREAS
- STREAM RESTORATION/
  BANK STABILIZATION
- STORMWATER

050325 BCC Meeting

77



Blank Page 
 
 

050325 BCC Meeting

78



AGENDA ITEM 8: 

APPALACHIAN STATE UNIVERSITY REQUEST FOR NC HWY 105 PROPERTY
RELEASE 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 

Mr. JJ Brown, Executive Vice Chancellor, Chief Operating Officer for Appalachian State 
University, will request the Board release a portion of the App105 Property (formally the old 
Watauga High School property).  The request is related to the development of off-campus 
apartments at the App 105 site.  Appalachian State University (Endowment) is requesting from the 
County a partial release from the Deed of Trust of approximately 18.84 acres of the 74.634-acre 
site. The balance of 55.794 acres and the improvements (~26M to date – softball, tennis, track and 
field, etc.) made on the property since the 2017 purchase would remain subject to the lien of the 
Deed of Trust. 

The Bank providing the loan for the project is requiring a release of the deed of trust for the project 
area in order to close (scheduled for May 15, 2025).  After negotiations, staff and officials of the 
County and University staff agreed to accelerate the installments of the repayment schedule from 
15 years to 7 years in exchange for the release.  A draft document for discussion and possible 
consideration is included.   

Board action is required to accept the agreement as presented.  

050325 BCC Meeting

79



DRAFT 
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

This Memorandum of Understanding (this “Memorandum”) is made as of the ____ day of 
__________, 2025 (the “Effective Date”), by and between Watauga County, Boone, North 
Carolina (the “County”) and the Board of Trustees of the Endowment Fund of Appalachian State 
University (the “Endowment”).  

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, on September 29, 2017, the Endowment purchased from the County a 
74.634-acre parcel of land (the “Property”) located in Boone, North Carolina, as more particularly 
described in that deed recorded in Book of Record 1940, Page 400, Watauga County Public 
Registry; and 

WHEREAS, the Endowment’s purchase of the Property was financed, in part, by a 
purchase money loan (the “Loan”) pursuant to a promissory note (the “Note”) in the amount of 
$15,475,000 to the County and secured by that certain North Carolina Purchase Money Deed of 
Trust (the “Deed of Trust”) recorded in Book of Record 1940 Page 407, Watauga County Public 
Registry; and 

WHEREAS, the Endowment desires to ground lease an approximately 18.84-acre portion 
of the Property as more particularly described on Exhibit A attached hereto (the “Ground Lease 
Property”) in connection with a student housing facility to be developed thereon (the “Student 
Housing Project”); and 

WHEREAS, the lender financing the development of the Student Housing Project requires 
that the Ground Lease Property be released from the Deed of Trust, but the remainder of the 
Property (the “Remaining Property”) will remain subject to the Deed of Trust; and 

WHEREAS, the County is willing to release the Ground Lease Property provided that the 
Endowment makes, or causes to be made, a partial prepayment of the Loan in the amount of 
$1,075,000 within thirty (30) days of the delivery of the partial release and thereafter makes, or 
causes to be made, annual payments of the Loan in the amount of the lesser of (i) $1,600,000 and 
(ii) the remaining balance of the Loan. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements of the 
parties, contained herein, the parties agree as follows:  

1. Partial Release of Ground Lease Property. The County agrees that the County shall execute
and deliver to the Endowment a partial release (the “Partial Release”) of the Ground Lease
Property from the Deed of Trust, the form of which is attached hereto as Exhibit B, prior to the
close of the financing of the development of the Student Housing Project.

2. Payment to County Upon Delivery of the Partial Release. The Endowment agrees that within
thirty (30) days from the County’s execution and delivery to the Endowment of the Partial
Release, the Endowment will pay, or cause to be paid, to the County $1,075,000, which amount

050325 BCC Meeting

80



DRAFT 
will be considered a partial prepayment under the Note and credited towards the remaining 
balance of the Loan. 

3. Increased Payments of Loan. The Endowment agrees that beginning on July 1, 2025, and upon
each subsequent payment due date thereafter under the Note, the Endowment will pay, or cause
to be paid, to the County the lesser of (i) $1,600,000 and (ii) the remaining balance of the Loan.
The first $800,000 of this payment will be the annual payment due under the Note, and any
amount more than the first $800,000 will be considered a partial prepayment under the Note.
The entirety of these payments will be credited towards the remaining balance of the Loan. A
schedule of these payments is shown on Exhibit C attached hereto.

4. Counterparts; Electronic Signatures.  This Memorandum may be executed in separate
counterparts. It shall be fully executed when each party has signed at least one (1) counterpart,
even though no one (1) counterpart contains all the signatures. This Memorandum may be
executed by facsimile signatures or electronic signatures (such as an executed .pdf document
emailed by a party), and each counterpart executed and transmitted by facsimile or email shall
have the same force and effect as an originally executed document.

5. No Waiver. The failure of either party to insist in any instance upon the strict performance of
any of the terms and conditions set forth in this Memorandum shall not be construed as a waiver
of the same in any other instance.

6. Amendments. This Memorandum may not be amended except by writing signed by all parties
against whom enforcement of such amendment is sought.

7. Governing Law.  This Memorandum shall be governed by North Carolina law, without regard
to conflict of laws principles.  Each of the parties hereto hereby irrevocably consents and
submits to the jurisdiction and venue of the state or federal courts located within the State of
North Carolina.

8. Entire Agreement. This Memorandum and any documents incorporated specifically by
reference herein represent the entire agreement between the parties and supersede any other
written statements or agreements.

[Signature Page Follows] 

050325 BCC Meeting

81



DRAFT 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the authorized representatives of the parties have executed this  
Memorandum as of the date first written above.  
 
Board of Trustees of the Endowment 
Fund of Appalachian State University  
 

 Watauga County, Boone, North Carolina 

 
By: ________________________________ 
 
Name:   Heather Norris 

  
By: ________________________________ 
 
Name:  

 
Title:    Chancellor 

  
Title:  

 
Date:  

  
Date:  

 

 
By: ________________________________ 
 
Name:   John Adams 

  

 
Title:    Interim Chief Financial Officer 

  

 
Date:  

  

 

  

050325 BCC Meeting

82



DRAFT 
 

EXHIBIT A 

GROUND LEASE PROPERTY 

  

050325 BCC Meeting

83



DRAFT 
 

EXHIBIT B 

FORM OF PARTIAL RELEASE 

 

 

  

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA PARTIAL RELEASE 
 (N.C.G.S. §45-36.22) 
COUNTY OF WATAUGA 

(This instrument should be indexed as a “subsequent instrument” pursuant to N.C. G.S. 161-14.1) 

The security instrument that is the subject of this Partial Release is identified as follows: 

Type of Security Instrument:  North Carolina Purchase Money Deed of Trust  

Original Grantor(s):  Board of Trustees of the Endowment Fund of Appalachian State 
University 

Original Secured Party(ies):  Watauga County, Boone, North Carolina 

Recording Data:  The Security Instrument is recorded in Book 1940 at Page 407 in the 
Office of the Register of Deeds for Watauga County, North Carolina. 

The person or persons signing this Partial Release is the secured creditor. 

The following described property or interest in property (and no other) is released from 
the lien of the Security Instrument:  

See Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. 

This Partial Release shall apply only to so much of the real property described herein, and 
that as to the remainder of said real property encumbered by the Security Instrument, the 
Security Instrument shall remain in full force and effect. 

This Partial Release is not intended, nor is it to be construed, as evidence of satisfaction 
of the indebtedness evidenced and secured by the Security Instrument. 

[Signature page follows.]

DRAWN BY AND RETURN TO: 
Appalachian State University 
Attn: Associate General Counsel 
PO Box 32126 
Boone, NC 28608 

050325 BCC Meeting

84



DRAFT 
 

 

 

  

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO PARTIAL RELEASE] 

Date: __________ _____, 2025 

WATAUGA COUNTY, BOONE, NORTH 
CAROLINA, 
 
By:        
Name:  
Title:  

 
 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF       
(Place of Acknowledgement) 

I certify that the following person(s) personally appeared before me this day, each 
acknowledging to me that he or she signed the foregoing document: ________________. 

Date:  : __________ _____, 2025    
Notary Public 
Printed or Typed Name  

(Official Seal)  My commission expires:  

050325 BCC Meeting

85



DRAFT 
 

EXHIBIT C 

SCHEDULE OF PAYMENTS 

Payment Date Total Payment 
Amount 

Annual Payment 
Amount 

Prepayment 
Amount 

Remaining Loan 
Balance 

    $13,075,000 

June 2025 $1,075,000 $0 $1,075,000 $12,000,000 

July 1, 2025 $1,600,000 $800,000 $800,000 $10,400,000 

July 1, 2026 $1,600,000 $800,000 $800,000 $8,800,000 

July 1, 2027 $1,600,000 $800,000 $800,000 $7,200,000 

July 1, 2028 $1,600,000 $800,000 $800,000 $5,600,000 

July 1, 2029 $1,600,000 $800,000 $800,000 $4,000,000 

July 1, 2030 $1,600,000 $800,000 $800,000 $2,400,000 

July 1, 2031 $1,600,000 $800,000 $800,000 $800,000 

July 1, 2032 $800,000 $800,000 $0 $0 

 

050325 BCC Meeting

86



8''W

316
0

3165

3170

3175

3180

3185

3190

319
5

320
0

320
5

321
0

321
5

322
0

322
5

32
05

32
05

3205

3205

32
05

3205

3210

3210

3215

3215

3220

3220

3225

3230

3235

3240

3245

3250

3255

3260

3265

3270

3275

3280 3285 3290
3295

3300

3240

324
5

325
0

32
55

326
0

32
65

32
70

32
75

32
80

32
85

32
90

32
95

3300

3250

3255

3260

3265

3270

3275

3280

3285

3250

3255

3260

3265

3270

3275

3280

3175

3180

3185

3190

3195

3200

3205

3210

3215

3220

3225

3230

3195

3200

3205

3210

3215

3220

3225

3230

3235

3200

3205

3210

3215

3220

3225

3230

3235

3240

3245

3195

3200

3205

321
0

3215

322
0

3225

3230

3215

3220

3225

3230

3235

3225

3230

3225

3230

3235

3230

3235

3240

3225

3230

3235
3240

3245

3250

3255

3215

3220

3225

3230

3235

3240

3245

3250

32
00

32
05

32
10

321
5

3220

32
25

3165

3170

3175

3180

3185

3190

3195

3200

3205

3210

3215

32
72

32
73

32
70

32
71

32
69

32
68

32
67

32
66

32
65

32
64 32
63

32
61

32
60

32
59

3258

3257

3256

3255

3254

3253

3252

3251

3250

3249 3248

3247

3246

3245

3244

3243
3242

3241

3270

3265

3273

32
72

32
70

32
69

32
68

32
67

32
66

32
65

32
64

32
6332

62

32
61

32
60

32
59

32
58

32
57

3260

3265

3260

3270

3265

3260

3249

3250

3245

3240

3235

3230

3252

3250

3245

3240

3235

3250

3245

3240

3235

3230

3225

3220

32
20

32
10

3230

3231
3232

32
34

3235

323
5

3235

32433244

3240

3234

3236 3236

3236

3231

3230

3244

3240

3235

32
37

3242

3235

32
35

3234

324
3

3242

32
35

3233

3231

3232

3235

3235

3230

32
43

32
42

3243

3242

321
5

322
0

322
5

32
25

3215

32
07

32
28

32
27

32
26

3229

3230

3229

3228

32
28

3229

3230

3231

3232

3231

3233

3231

3232

3233

3232

3231

3233

3234

3236

3236

3236

3217
3220

3230

3225

3220

3217

3230
3231

3229

3228

3227

3232

3231

32
33

3235

323
5

32363236

3236

3236

3236

3236

32373237

323
6

323
6

3236

3235

3236

3236

3237

3238

3236 323
6

3236

32
36

32
35

3236

3236

32
36

32
36

3235

3236

3235

32
35

32
34

3235

3235

3236

32
36

3236

3235

3234

323
4

3233

3232

3231

3235

3234

3233

3232

3234

3233

3232

3231

3234

32
36

3236

3236

32
36

3236

32
36

3235

3236

3237

32
40

32
45

3220
3216 322

0
322

5
323

0 3235

3230

3235

3225

3240
3240

323
5

32
36

32
37 32
38

32
39

32
40

32
41

323
6

32
36

3236

3235

3236

323
5323

5

3236

3236
323632363236

32
36

3239

32
38

32
37

32
36

3245

32
44

3243

32
40

32
41

3242

32433244

32
45

32
44

32
42

3242

3241

32
40

3235

3232

3240

3241

3242

3240

3236

3241

3236

32
42

32
43

32
44

32
45

32
46

32
47

32
48

324
9

324
5

324
0

3235

3230

3235

3234

3241

3239

3238

3237

3236

32
36

32
37

32
38

3239

3243

3242

3243

324432
35

3233

3234

3234

3235

3236

3237

3238
3238

32
35

3236

3235

3235

3235 32
35 32
36

32
36

32
3632
35

3235

3236

3236

32
36

323
6

3235

3227

32253221

3220

3224

3220

3218

3214

3210

3205

LOD

LO
D

LOD

LOD

LOD

LOD

LOD

LOD

LOD
LOD LOD LOD

LOD LOD LOD

LOD

LOD

LO
D

LOD

LODLOD
LODLOD

LOD

COND.
UNIT

COND.
UNIT

COND.
UNIT

COND.
UNIT

COND.
UNIT

COND.
UNIT

COND.
UNIT

COND.
UNIT

T

T

T

T

TT

COND.
UNIT

COND.
UNIT

COND.
UNIT

COND.
UNIT

COND.
UNIT

COND.
UNIT

COND.
UNIT

COND.
UNIT

T

T

T

T

ST
OP

STOP

STOP

STOP

STOPSTOP
STOP

ST
OP

ST
OP

ST
OP

STOP

STOPSTOP

ST
OP

ST
OP

ST
OP

STOP

STOP

STOP

STOPSTOP

TT

1

2 3
4 5

6

7

POINT DESCRIPTION NORTHING EASTING

1 N 902785.699600 E 1209838.068500
2 N 902492.105481 E 1210042.136796
3 N 902492.738974 E 1210142.950942
4 N 902479.739723 E 1210146.841690
5 N 902604.773587 E 1211246.092369
6 N 902574.326041 E 1211287.453055
7 N 902640.804600 E 1211485.860900

NORTHING/EASTING POINT SCHEDULE GROUND LEASE AREA

LOT 105 HOUSING 820,460.68 SF
18.84  ACRES

CONSTRUCTION LIMITS:         682,344.85 SF
15.66  ACRES

BUILDING HEIGHT: 65'

GROUND LEASE LIMITS

CONSTRUCTION LIMITS

NORTHING/EASTING POINT
(GROUND LEASE LINE)

##

APPALACHIAN STATE UNIVERSITY - LOT 105 STUDENT HOUSING
GROUND LEASE EXHIBIT

RISE BOONE LLC  |  03/25/2025

M
OUNTAINEER RIDGE DRIVE

(NCDOT ROW
)

HIGHWAY 105

TEMPLE DRIVE
(TOB ROW)

NORTHING/EASTING POINTS PROVIDED WHERE GROUND
LEASE DEFERS FROM SURVEYED PARCEL LINES

050325 BCC Meeting

87



Requested Area 
of Release

Area Remaining 
subject to Deed 
of Trust

050325 BCC Meeting

88



AGENDA ITEM 9: 

BID AWARD REQUEST FOR ADMINISTRATION HVAC 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Robert Marsh, Maintenance Director, will request the Board award a contract to Edmisten 
Heating & Cooling in the amount of $26,136 for air conditioning equipment at the Watauga County 
Administration Building.  Two bids were received with Edmisten Heating & Cooling being the 
lowest responsive bidder. 
 
Board action is required to award Edmisten Heating & Cooling for HVAC replacement at the 
Watauga County Administration Building in the amount of $26,136. 
 

050325 BCC Meeting

89



050325 BCC Meeting

90



050325 BCC Meeting

91



050325 BCC Meeting

92



050325 BCC Meeting

93



Blank Page 
 
 

050325 BCC Meeting

94



AGENDA ITEM 10: 

EMERGENCY SERVICES MATTERS

A. Resolution Opposing House Bill 675: EMT Personnel Credentialing Modifications and 
House Bill 219: Counties/Franchise Ambulance Service 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 

Mr. Will Holt, Emergency Services Director, will request the Board adopt the resolution as 
presented opposing House Bill 675: EMT Personnel Credentialing Modifications and House Bill 
219: Counties/Franchise Ambulance Service. 

Board action is required to adopt the resolution as presented.  

050325 BCC Meeting

95



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF WATAUGA 

A Resolution Opposing House Bill 675: EMT Personnel Credentialing 
Modifications and House Bill 219: Counties/Franchise Ambulance Service 

WHEREAS, Watauga County has a significant public interest in the provision of Emergency 
Medical Services (EMS); and 

WHEREAS, Watauga County has felt the impact of the difficulty in recruiting and retaining 
skilled EMS professionals; and 

WHEREAS, Watauga County currently provides EMS through a franchise agreement with 
a private EMS company as provided for by North Carolina General Statute; and  

WHEREAS, House Bill 675 and House Bill 219 both directly impact Watauga County’s 
ability to provide EMS. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the Watauga County Board of Commissioners 
vehemently oppose House Bill 675 and House Bill 219.  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED the Commissioners strongly urge the General Assembly to 
speak with industry experts, County EMS staff, and the North Carolina Office of Emergency 
Medical Services regarding the impacts this legislation will have on all citizens in Watauga County 
and throughout the State on the EMS professionals who provide this critical service. 

ADOPTED by the Board of County Commissioners on this 6th, day of May, 2025. 

____________________________________  
Braxton Eggers, Chairman 
Watauga County Board of Commissioners 

ATTEST: 

________________________________ 
Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 

DRAFT 

050325 BCC Meeting

96



AGENDA ITEM 10: 

EMERGENCY SERVICES MATTERS

B. Resolution Opposing Senate Bill 257: Current Operations Appropriations Act of 2025 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 

Mr. Holt, will request the Board adopt the resolution as presented opposing Senate Bill 257: 
Current Operations Appropriations Act of 2025. 

Board action is required to adopt the resolution as presented.  

050325 BCC Meeting

97



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF WATAUGA 

Resolution Opposing Senate Bill 257: Current Operations Appropriations Act of 
2025 

WHEREAS, Watauga County is subject to impacts from disasters, including most recently 
Hurricane Helene; and 

WHEREAS, Watauga County was supported in response by North Carolina Emergency 
Management (NCEM); and 

WHEREAS, Senate Bill 257 includes revisions to NCGS 166A, removing critical authority 
from NCEM during a disaster and other disaster related programs; and  

WHEREAS, Senate Bill 257 also includes revisions to NCGS143B-1726 mandating 
statewide radio system user fees, transferring a financial burden to public safety agencies. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the Watauga County Board of Commissioners 
opposes Senate Bill 257 that would undo decades of relationship building and professional 
capacity that has been built through training and disaster response. North Carolina Emergency 
Management has been a critical partner through all phases of emergency management and is in 
the best position to continue to lead the State Emergency Response Team (SERT) during times of 
disaster.  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED the Board strongly opposes user fees being applied to local 
responder agencies which are not supported by the April 2018 Program Evaluation Division Study 
completed by the General Assembly in 2018. Watauga County strongly supports the VIPER 
system, and would encourage funding of the system through State funds. 

ADOPTED by the Board of County Commissioners on this 6th, day of May, 2025. 

____________________________________  
Braxton Eggers, Chairman 
Watauga County Board of Commissioners 

ATTEST: 

________________________________ 
Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 

DRAFT 

050325 BCC Meeting

98



AGENDA ITEM 10: 

EMERGENCY SERVICES MATTERS

C. Resolution Supporting House Bill 695: Support VIPER/Assist 911 Operations/Dispatch 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 

Mr. Holt will request the Board adopt the resolution as presented supporting House Bill 695: 
Support VIPER/Assist 911 Operations/Dispatch. 

Board action is required to adopt the resolution as presented.  

050325 BCC Meeting

99



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF WATAUGA 

Resolution Supporting House Bill 695: Support VIPER/Assist 911 
Operations/Dispatch 

WHEREAS, the State of North Carolina owns, operates, and partners with local public 
safety in use of the Voice Interoperability Plan for Emergency Responders (VIPER) system; and 

WHEREAS, Watauga County is currently investing in a public safety radio system in 
conjunction with the VIPER system; and 

WHEREAS, the VIPER system was instrumental throughout the response and immediate 
recovery efforts during Hurricane Helene; and  

WHEREAS, House Bill 695 seeks to improve funding for the operation and maintenance 
of the VIPER system through use of existing funding mechanisms. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the Watauga County Board of Commissioners 
strongly support House Bill 695 as it provides critical funding needed to make the VIPER system 
even more resilient and allow for greater interoperability and coordination between our local, 
regional, and State emergency services agencies. 

ADOPTED by the Board of County Commissioners on this 6th, day of May, 2025. 

____________________________________  
Braxton Eggers, Chairman 
Watauga County Board of Commissioners 

ATTEST: 

________________________________ 
Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 

DRAFT 

050325 BCC Meeting

100



AGENDA ITEM 10: 

EMERGENCY SERVICES MATTERS

D. Hurricane Helene Update 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 

Mr. Will Holt, Emergency Services Director, will provide a Hurricane Helene update.  The report 
is information only; therefore, no action is required. 

050325 BCC Meeting

101



Watauga County Emergency Services 
184 Hodges Gap Rd, Suite D 

Boone, NC 28607 
Phone 828-264-4235 

Fax 828-265-7617 

Fire Marshal ♦ Emergency Management ♦ Communications 

April 30th, 2025 

To:  Board of Commissioners 

CC: Deron Geouque, County Manager 
Anita Fogle, Clerk to the Board 

Subject: Helene Update 

Board of Commissioners, 

I would like to offer a brief update on the status of recovery in Watauga County from the Emergency 
Services perspective. It is hard to imagine that it has been seven months since Helene struck our County 
and while we have made great progress we know we still have a long way to go. A few key points: 

- County staff continue to work with our insurance provider, most claims have received their 
determination and this information has been passed along to FEMA as we work through our Public 
Assistance (PA) projects 

- Right-of-Way debris removal continues and new debris placement ended March 2nd. We have 
shared multiple concerns with overall progress with the vendor. It is noted other counties are 
having similar or worse concerns with the same vendor and we are coordinating that flow of 
information with NCEM for future operations. 

- Waterway and private property debris removal operations with the Corps of Engineers (USACE) 
has been approved and have begun. Aerostar and TetraTech are leading the intake process, Right 
of Entry acquisition, and site assessments for the Private Property Debris Removal (PPDR) 
program. Bering Strait is the prime contractor for the actual debris removal work. 

- The PPDR ROE intake process concluded on May 1st with the contractor completing follow up 
inspections for final submission to USACE no later than May 15th. At time of report, over 900 
applications have been received. 

- Staff continues to coordinate weekly with USACE, Watauga County Soil and Water, NRCS, and 
FEMA on debris management and future steps in restoring our waterways. At time of report, over 
80,000 cubic yards of debris have been removed from our waterways. 

- FEMA has stood up a landslide taskforce to assist State and local governments with tracking 
landslide damage and potential paths forward for remediation. At time of report there are 247 
mapped landslides in the County varying in size. 

- The OSBM/NCEM Private Road and Bridge program has been partially funded through HB47. This 
program is designed to duplicate the success seen in the southwest part of the State during the 
2022 TS Fred floods, however continued funding will be critical to long term success. Currently, 
the State has procured 10 engineering firms to assist with evaluating the thousands of 
applications for assistance. We are monitoring this closely as a critical path of our recovery. 

050325 BCC Meeting

102



Watauga County Emergency Services 
184 Hodges Gap Rd, Suite D 

Boone, NC 28607 
Phone 828-264-4235 

Fax 828-265-7617 

Fire Marshal ♦ Emergency Management ♦ Communications 

- Hagerty Consulting is on the ground and working with staff to complete PA projects. We currently 
meet bi-weekly to discuss progress and priorities and have meetings with FEMA every two weeks. 

- The Multi-Agency Resource Center (MARC) remains open however use data is being monitored 
to ensure this is the best use of resources. We have requested the MARC stay open through the 
summer and will monitor continued use. Currently, the MARC averages 6-10 visits per day for 
various services.  

The Emergency Services Department is grateful for the partnership with our local, State, and federal 
partners specifically as they focus efforts to get money flowing into our community to restore what was 
lost and also build an even more resilient future. 

Respectfully, 

Will Holt 
ES Director 

050325 BCC Meeting

103



Right-of-Entry Emergency Response 
Related to Tropical Storm Helene

30 April 2025 Update

050325 BCC Meeting

104



Watauga County Update

Total ROEs Initiated = 901
Completed Inspections = 699
PPDR Packages to USACE = 623 

ROEs

050325 BCC Meeting

105



Watauga County Update
050325 BCC Meeting

106



Discussion Topics

– PPDR application end date: 1 May 2025
– Last PPDR application package to USACE: 15 May 2025
– Demolitions, vehicles, vessels packages are being

coordinated with Mark Cardwell, as Mark is touching base
the county officials about these items

050325 BCC Meeting

107



Blank Page 

050325 BCC Meeting

108



AGENDA ITEM 10: 

EMERGENCY SERVICES MATTERS

E. Powder Horn Site Tree Removal and Construction Driveway Request 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 

Mr. Will Holt, Emergency Services Director, will request the Board approve Engineered Tower 
Solution’s (ETS) quote for $41,212 for tree removal at the Powder Horn site.  Funds have been 
budgeted as part of the project. 

Board action is required.  

050325 BCC Meeting

109



Watauga County Emergency Services 
184 Hodges Gap Rd, Suite D 

Boone, NC 28607 
Phone 828-264-4235 

Fax 828-265-7617 

Fire Marshal ♦ Emergency Management ♦ Communications 

April 25th, 2024 

To:  Board of Commissioners 

CC: Deron Geouque, County Manager 
Anita Fogle, Clerk to the Board 

Subject: Powder Horn Site Tree Removal and Construction Driveway Request 

Board of Commissioners, 

As part of the public safety infrastructure project the next step for the Powder Horn site is the removal 
of trees from the area as required for the footprint of the tower compound, installation of a 
construction driveway, and silt fencing. Attached is the quote provided by Engineered Tower Solution 
(ETS) for this work in the amount of $41,212. Funds have been budgeted as part of the project. 

Respectfully, 

Will Holt 
ES Director 

050325 BCC Meeting

110



Qty. Material Material Total Material Qty. Labor Labor Total Labor

11
Cost to apply for and obtain a building permit from the local 
jurisdiction (please include the Fee in your Labor cost). N/A N/A N/A 500.00$              ‐$  

12

Cost per tree removal and disposal based on a tree with a 3' 
diameter. This work is not part of the SOW in the "Complete 
Site Installation" and "Land Clearing for 20' access road".  10 2,070.00$         20,700.00$       10 517.50$              5,175.00$          

13

Cost per linear foot to supply and install a 7ft compound 
fence or 6ft fence with 2ft barbed wire. The fencing shall be of 
adequate grade to allow exothermic bonding (cad weld) of a 
ground conductor to the fence post.    51.75$               ‐$                   15.52$                ‐$  

14

Cost to supply and install 16-ft double gate. The gate shall be 
of adequate grade to allow exothermic bonding (cad weld) of a 
ground conductor to the gate. 2,588.00$         ‐$                   1,552.00$           ‐$  

15
Cost to supply and install 8' copper ground rod and 16’ of #2 
tinned solid conductor. 100.80$            ‐$                   18.00$                ‐$  

16
Cost to supply and install 10' horizontal chemically enhanced 
grounding rod system (per chem rod). 2,250.00$         ‐$                   450.00$              ‐$  

17

Cost per square foot to supply and install Geo Tech fabric 
for work outside the “Complete Site Installation” Scope listed 
above. 0.31$                 ‐$                   0.09$                   ‐$  

18
Cost per ton to supply and install #57 stone for work outside 
the “Complete Site Installation” Scope listed above. 15 50.40$               756.00$            15 18.00$                270.00$             

19
Cost per ton to supply and install crush and run for work 
outside the “Complete Site Installation” Scope listed above. 15 50.40$               756.00$            15 18.00$                270.00$             

20
Cost per ton to supply and install riprap for work outside the 
“Complete Site Installation” Scope listed above 15 50.40$               756.00$            15 18.00$                270.00$             

21
Cost per square yard to supply and install seed and straw 
outside compound where required. 1.27$                 ‐$                   0.18$                   ‐$  

22
Cost per cubic yard to supply and install additional fill 
needed for backfill and site grading. 31.50$               ‐$                   18.00$                ‐$  

23
Cost per foot to supply and install of silt fencing (wire mesh & 
metal posts). 1.04$                 ‐$                   1.13$                   ‐$  

24
Cost per foot to supply and install silt fencing (fabric & 
wooden post). 300 0.95$                 285.00$            300 1.13$                   339.00$             

Civil Contract Itemized Quote ‐ 19‐IFB‐1107066437‐HDE
Site(s) Name: Powder Horn Mountain ‐ Clearing Only

Contract costs ‐ West site (fill in yellow highlighted boxes ONLY)

050325 BCC Meeting

111



25

Cost to supply and install COPS connector and three pole 
double throw switch on buildings without COPS connector. 
Receptacle shall be an Appleton PN ADJA20044-250. 2,700.00$         ‐$                   1,350.00$           ‐$                    

26
Cost to supply and plant 1 landscape greenery (this could be 
anything from a shrub, bush, tree, etc. in any size). 18.00$               ‐$                   9.00$                   ‐$                    

27

Cost to supply and install gravel for a 25’ x 40’ turnaround 
area outside fence gate on existing or expanding site for work 
outside the “Complete Site Installation” Scope listed above. 1,710.00$         ‐$                   621.00$              ‐$                    

28

Cost to have a licensed HVAC mechanic replace existing wall 
mounted WA series Bard HVAC with same series Bard 
supplied by owner; cost includes any materials/supplies and 
labor for the job. 200.00$            ‐$                   500.00$              ‐$                    

29 Cost to replace a 40kW generator at an existing site per SOW 2,250.00$         ‐$                   2,700.00$           ‐$                    

30 Cost to replace a 100kW generator on an existing site per SOW 2,250.00$         ‐$                   2,700.00$           ‐$                    

31
Cost to replace a transfer switch for a 40kW generator per 
SOW 450.00$            ‐$                   1,350.00$           ‐$                    

32
Cost to replace a transfer switch for a 100kW generator per 
SOW 450.00$            ‐$                   1,575.00$           ‐$                    

33 Cost per day for a 120 ton crane 6,000.00$        ‐$                  750.00$             ‐$                   
34 Cost per day for a CAT D6 (or equivelant) bulldozer 1,000.00$        ‐$                  215.00$             ‐$                   
35 Cost per day for an 8,000 pound skidsteer 200.00$           ‐$                  79.00$               ‐$                   
36 Cost per day for 10,000 pound Lull (or equivelant) 300.00$           ‐$                  60.00$               ‐$                   
37 Cost per day for an 8,000 pound excavator 300.00$           ‐$                  60.00$               ‐$                   

Optional Tasks Totals 23,253.00$       6,324.00$         

Qty. Material Material Total Material Qty. Labor Labor Total Labor

38

Minimal land clearing (grub roots, light brush, small trees up to 
6" trunk diameter), cut/fill, and normal soil: Cost per square foot 
to clear. 1.30$                 ‐$                   1.00$                   ‐$                    

39

Moderate land clearing (medium brush and trees up to 12" 
trunk diameter), cut/fill, and/or poor soil: Cost per square foot to 
clear. 1.30$                 ‐$                   1.00$                   ‐$                    

40

Extensive land clearing (clear heavily wooded area and pull 
stumps), cut/fill, and steep grade, e.g. mountain site access: 
Cost per square foot to clear. 3200 1.30$                 4,160.00$         3200 1.00$                   3,200.00$          

Access Road Totals 4,160.00$         3,200.00$          

Land Clearing for 20' access road

050325 BCC Meeting

112



Qty. Material Material Total Material Qty. Labor Labor Total Labor
41 Cost per 20' section to supply and install 4" culvert. 112.50$           ‐$                  180.00$             ‐$
42 Cost per 20' section to supply and install 6" culvert. 193.50$           ‐$                  180.00$             ‐$
43 Cost per 20' section to supply and install 8" culvert. 364.50$           ‐$                  180.00$             ‐$
44 Cost per 20' section to supply and install 10" culvert. 481.50$           ‐$                  225.00$             ‐$
45 Cost per 20' section to supply and install 12" culvert. 463.50$           ‐$                  225.00$             ‐$
46 Cost per 20' section to supply and install 15" culvert. 621.00$           ‐$                  270.00$             ‐$
47 Cost per 20' section to supply and install 24" culvert. 874.80$           ‐$                  315.00$             ‐$
48 Cost per 20' section to supply and install 30" culvert. 1,503.00$        ‐$                  450.00$             ‐$
49 Cost per 20' section to supply and install 36" culvert. 1,471.50$        ‐$                  540.00$             ‐$

Culverts/Site Drainage Totals ‐$                  ‐$

Qty. Material Material Total Material Qty. Labor Labor Total Labor

50
Cost per linear foot to supply and install 1.5" SCH 40 
underground conduit. 12.60$               ‐$                   7.20$                   ‐$  

51
Cost per linear foot to supply and install 2" SCH 40 
underground conduit. 12.60$               ‐$                   7.20$                   ‐$  

52
Cost per linear foot to supply and install 3" SCH 40 
underground conduit. 12.60$               ‐$                   7.20$                   ‐$  

53
Cost per linear foot to supply and install 4" SCH 40 
underground conduit. 14.85$               ‐$                   7.20$                   ‐$  

Underground Conduit Totals: ‐$                  ‐$

Qty. Labor Labor Total Labor
54 Mobilization cost for a 2-man crew for 1/2 day rate 1,068.75$          ‐$
55 Mobilization cost for a 2-man crew for FULL day rate 2,137.50$          ‐$
56 Mobilization cost for a 4-man crew for 1/2 day rate 2,137.50$          ‐$
57 Mobilization cost for a 4-man crew for Full day rate 1 4,275.00$          4,275.00$         

Mobilization Totals: 4,275.00$         

Total Job Materials cost
Total Job Labor cost

27,413.00$    
13,799.00$    

N/A

Underground Conduit

Mobilization Cost

Culverts and Site Drainage - Cost to provide and install HDPE double wall corrugated pipe with smooth interior wall. Inlet/Outlet protection stone material and 
installation shall be priced using appropriate lines above.

050325 BCC Meeting

113



Blank Page 

050325 BCC Meeting

114



AGENDA ITEM 11: 

BOARD OF EQUALIZATION AND REVIEW (E&R) COMPENSATION 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 

Mr. Tyler Rash, Tax Administrator, will request the Board set the compensation rate for Board of 
Equalization and Review at $75 per meeting. 

Board action is required to set the rate of compensation for the Board of Equalization meetings for 
$75.   

050325 BCC Meeting

115



MEMORANDUM 

TO: Deron T. Geouque 

 CC: Anita Fogle, Clerk to the Board 

 FROM: Tyler Rash 

 SUBJECT: 2025 Board of Equalization and Review Compensation 

 DATE: April 29th, 2025 

Pursuant to NCGS 105-322 the Watauga County Board of Equalization and Review will meet as required 

by law. 

The Board will convene for its first meeting on Monday, April 28, 2025 at 9:00am.  The Board will 

adjourn for the purpose of accepting applications for hearing Friday, May 9, 2025 at 5:00pm. 

The member compensation needs to be set.  For the past several years it has been $75.00 per 

session. 

Thank you. 

050325 BCC Meeting

116



AGENDA ITEM 12: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
A. Presentation of the FY 2026 Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 

The County Manager will present the FY 2025-2026 Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) for your 
review prior to discussion during the upcoming budget work sessions.  A link to the FY 2025-2026 
CIP and Budget documents will be provided on the day of the meeting. 

050325 BCC Meeting

117



Blank Page 

050325 BCC Meeting

118



AGENDA ITEM 12: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
B. Presentation of the Manager’s FY 2026 Recommended Budget 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 

The Manager will present his recommended FY 2026 Budget at the meeting and review 
highlights.  If you have questions, please feel free to call or discuss at the budget work sessions 
scheduled on Thursday, May 8, 2025 beginning at 12:00 P.M. and Friday, May 9, 2025 at 9:00 
A.M. 

The recommended Budget will be available for public inspection on the County’s website and at 
the County Manager’s Office.  

A public hearing will be held on May 20, 2025, at 5:30 P.M. to allow citizen comment on the 
proposed budget. 

050325 BCC Meeting

119



Blank Page 

050325 BCC Meeting

120



AGENDA ITEM 12: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
C. Proposed Valle Crucis School Change Order 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 

The Board previously approved the furniture bid for the Valle Crucis Elementary School in the 
amount of $905,128.32.  However, due to product discontinuations and manufacturer refinements 
an additional cost of $8,848.41 was incurred.  The total for furniture is $913,976.73.  Adequate 
funds are available in the project to cover the increase.   

Board approval is required to accept the additional increase of $8,848.41 for furniture at the new 
Valle Crucis Elementary School.   

050325 BCC Meeting

121



301 College Street, Suite 300 

Asheville, NC 28801 

clarknexsen.com 

April 24, 2025 

Watauga County Manager 

814 West King Street, Suite 205 

Boone, NC 28607 

Attn:  Mr. Deron Geouque 

County Manager 

RE: Purchase Order Adjustment – Valle Crucis School 

Dear Deron, 

I'm writing regarding changes to the furniture quote for the Valle Crucis School project. Young Office, 

the furniture dealer, has notified us of several factors requiring a price adjustment: 

1. Product Discontinuations: Young Office has informed us that some originally specified items

have been discontinued. We've worked together to select comparable alternatives that

maintain your functional and aesthetic requirements, though these replacement products have

come at higher price points than the originally specified items.  We worked diligently with

Young to find a comparable product from a quality and lifecycle cost standpoint.

2. Manufacturer Refinements: One of our originally specified upholstery selections were not

approved by manufacturers for application on certain furniture items, requiring us to select

alternative fabrics at different price points that meet both aesthetic and performance

requirements.

We deeply value our partnership on this important project and appreciate your continued trust. If 

you have any questions about these adjustments or would like to discuss any aspects in more 

detail, I'm always available to connect when it's convenient for you. 

Sincerely, 

Melanie Dover Goodson, 

Senior Certified Interior Designer 

050325 BCC Meeting

122

Melanie.Goodson
Image



AGENDA ITEM 12: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
D. Civil Design Services for Proposed Solid Waste Convenience Center at Landfill Road 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 

As part of the scale house renovation project, the container site will be relocated to the end of 
Landfill Road to remove residential traffic out the commercial traffic flow at the scale house.  Civil 
Design Concepts (CDC) has provided a proposal for civil design services for the project in the 
amount of $50,590.  CDC is currently providing the civil work for the new EMS Center.  Adequate 
funds are available in the current budget to cover the related expense.  

Board action is required to accept Civil Design Concepts proposal for civil services for the new 
container site in the amount of $50,590.   

050325 BCC Meeting

123



050325 BCC Meeting

124



050325 BCC Meeting

125



050325 BCC Meeting

126



050325 BCC Meeting

127



050325 BCC Meeting

128



050325 BCC Meeting

129



050325 BCC Meeting

130



050325 BCC Meeting

131



050325 BCC Meeting

132



AGENDA ITEM 12: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
E. Proposed Property & Liability Insurance and Workers Compensation Renewals Request 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 

Renewal rates for property and liability insurance and workers compensation will be presented for 
the Board’s consideration.  The rate for property and liability is $387,667 or a $29,292 increase, 
and the rate for workers compensation is $224,937; a $6,552 increase over last year.  Based on 
prior years’ claims experience, staff is recommending continuing the property deductible at 
$5,000.  The Manager’s recommended budget includes adequate funds to cover the insurance 
premiums. 

Board approval is requested to accept the renewals for property and liability insurance and workers 
compensation from the North Carolina Association of County Commissioners (NCACC), in the 
amount of $387,667 and $224,937 respectively. 

050325 BCC Meeting

133



NCACC RISK MANAGEMENT POOLS - LIABILITY AND PROPERTY

County:

RENEWAL ESTIMATE

JULY 1, 2025  to  JULY 1, 2026 Date of Quote 4/23/2025

Coverage Contract Limit Deductible  Contribution 

Property Insured Values $5,000 Total Property Values $128,622,500 87,880

Minimum Named Storm $25,000

(All members)

$1,000 Total Inland Marine Values $11,389,691 10,827

Flood, NFIP $500,000

Flood/Earthquake $25,000 Total $98,707

General Liability $2,000,000 $0 Population 54,972 27,434

Number of EMTs 0 0

Total $27,434

Automobile Liability $2,000,000 $0 Total # of Vehicles (Liability) 152 77,018

Excess Auto Liability 0

Physical Damage Actual Cash Value $1,000 Total # of Vehicles (PD) 152 39,061

Replacement Cost $0 Value of Selected Veh. $0 $0

Total $116,079

Crime $250,000 $1,000 Money on Premises 1 $1,258

$0 Great than $250,000 0 $0

Total $1,258

Public Officials Liability $2,000,000 $5,000 Population 54,972 31,914

per claim per claim

$4,000,000

annual aggregate Total $31,914

Law Enforcement Liability $2,000,000 $5,000 Class A Employees 51 53,079

per occurrence Class B Employees 30 17,390

Class C Employees 21 4,171

$4,000,000

aggregate Total $74,640

Employment Practices $2,000,000 $5,000 Population 54,972 24,635

Liability per claim per claim

$4,000,000

per aggregate Total $24,635

Employee Benefits $2,000,000 $5,000
Liability

Total included

Environmental Impairment $250,000 $0
Liability aggregate

Total included

Privacy or Security Event 
Liability

$1,000,000 
$10,000,000 Pool 

Aggregate

$5,000

Total $13,000

Annual Estimated Contribution $387,667

Please return this document with signed proposal. Excess cyber or overall liab on separate page(s) if applicable.

Renewal Exposure

Watauga County

050325 BCC Meeting

134



$2,500,000 

$5,000,000 

$2,500,000 

$250,000 

$100,000 

$250,000 

$2,500,000 

$500,000 

$100,000 

$10,000,000 

$2,500,000 ELECTRONIC DATA AND MEDIA

$50,000,000 

SPOILAGE $500,000 

SERVICE INTERRUPTION $2,500,000 

BUSINESS INTERRUPTION $25,000,000 

GROSS EARNINGS AND EXTRA EXPENSE $1,000,000 

EXPEDITING EXPENSE $500,000 

HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCE $1,000,000 

AMMONIA CONTAMINATION $500,000 

ELECTRONIC DATA & MEDIA $1,000,000 

CFC REFRIGERANTS $100,000 

COMPUTER EQUIPMENT $50,000,000 

$2,500,000 

$250,000 EVACUATION EXPENSE

$1,000,000 

$1,000,000 

$1,000,000 

$10,000,000 

$1,000,000 

$2,500,000 INCREASED COST OF CONSTRUCTION

$2,500,000 

$100,000 

CONTINGENT BUSINESS INCOME/CONTINGENT EXTRA EXPENSE

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

AUTOMATIC COVERAGE

BUSINESS INCOME AND EXTRA EXPENSE COMBINED

COST OF EXTINGUISHING LANDFILL FIRES

CONTINGENT TAX REVENUE INTERRUPTION

FLOOD – SUBJECT TO A $1,000,000 ANNUAL AGGREGATE AS RESPECTS LOCATIONS SITUATED 

WHOLLY OR PARTIALLY WITHIN SPECIAL HAZARD ZONES FOR FLOOD

DEBRIS REMOVAL (LESSOR OF 25% OF PROPERTY DAMAGE LOSS OR THE LIMIT SHOWN)

DECONTAMINATION COSTS

DEFERRED PAYMENTS

EARTHQUAKE – SUBJECT TO A $10,000,000 ANNUAL AGGREGATE

EQUIPMENT BREAKDOWN, INCLUDING:

ERRORS AND OMISSIONS

EXPEDITING EXPENSE

EXTENDED PERIOD OF INDEMNITY (LESSER OF ACTUAL LOSS SUSTAINED FOR 180 CONSECUTIVE 

DAYS OR LIMIT SHOWN) 

UNSCHEDULED FINE ARTS - SUBJECT TO A MAXIMUM OF $250,000 PER ITEM

FLOOD - SUBJECT TO A $10,000,000 ANNUAL AGGREGATE

2025 PROPERTY SUBLIMITS

INTERRUPTION BY CIVIL AUTHORITY

LAW ENFORCEMENT ANIMAL MORTALITY

050325 BCC Meeting

135



$2,500,000 

$2,500,000 

$250,000 

$50,000,000 

$250,000 

$10,000 

$100,000 

$2,500,000 

$100,000 

$2,500,000 

$2,500,000 

$2,500,000 

$2,500,000 

$100,000 

$150,000 

$15,000 

$250,000 

$10,000 

$100,000 UPGRADE TO GREEN

FIBER OPTICS DISTRIBUTION LINES LOCATED MORE THAN 1,000 FEET FROM A COVERED LOCATION

PERSONAL PROPERTY OF OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES OF THE PARTICIPANT

PROFESSIONAL FEES

PROPERTY IN COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION AND SOFT COSTS  - ANY ONE COVERED PROPERTY

LAND AND WATER CONTAMINANT OR POLLUTANT CLEANUP. REMOVAL AND DISPOSAL - SUBJECT 

TO A $500,000 ANNUAL AGGREGATE

UNSCHEDULED TUNNELS, BRIDGES, AND DAMS (EXCLUDING COVERAGE FOR THE PERILS OF 

EARTHQUAKE, FLOOD AND NAMED STORM)

UNSCHEDULED UNMANNED AIRCRAFT/UNMANNED AIRCRAFT SYSTEM - SUBJECT   TO A $50,000 

ANNUAL AGGREGATE

TRANSIT PROPERTY DAMAGE AND TIME ELEMENT COMBINED - PER CONVEYANCE

VALUABLE PAPERS & RECORDS & EDP MEDIA

INGRESS/EGRESS

LANDSCAPING, SUBJECT TO $15,000 ANY ONE SHRUB OR TREE, CAUSED BY OR RESULTING FROM A 

COVERED PERIL

ANY ONE WATERCRAFT, $1,500,000 ANY ONE OCCURRENCE FOR WATERCRAFT 27 FEET OR LESS IN 

LENGTH;

PIERS, DOCKS, PILINGS, BULKHEADS, AND WHARVES: ANY UNSCHEDULED LOCATION; $100,000 

MAXIMUM ANY ONE SCHEDULED LOCATION; $250,000 ANY ONE OCCURRENCE FOR ALL LOCATIONS 

(SCHEDULED AND UNSCHEDULED)

SERVICE INTERRUPTION - PROPERTY DAMAGE AND TIME ELEMENT COMBINED

LEASEHOLD INTEREST

 MISCELLANEOUS UNNAMED PROPERTY

MOBILE MEDICAL EQUIPMENT

NAMED STORM – APPLICABLE TO ALL MEMBERS

050325 BCC Meeting

136



Quoted on:
County or Entity:

*Total does not include excess cyber/overall liability or multi-pool/longevity incentives. See separate
page(s) if applicable.

Accepted by:
Signature

Printed Name 

Print Title

Date

Financial Officer:
Signature

Date

Please sign and return the accepted proposal by June 15th, 2025.

This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by the Government Budget and Fiscal Control 
Act.

$387,667

Annual Payment Plan*: 

renewal application may result in changes to the Estimated Contribution:

Payment Plan Available:  Liability & Property Pool
Watauga County

4/23/2025

I understand that changes made to the exposures subsequent to submission of the

We appreciate your participation. To insure effective, efficient operation of your Pool we

must receive payment in full no later than August 1st. A two percent late payment fee will be

assessed on all amounts received after that date.

NCACC 4/23/2025

050325 BCC Meeting

137



$11,830

Percentage of Final Signed Contribution (WC & L&P)

3.0%

Please note that any applicable incentives will be applied to the Workers 

Compensation line for 2025-2026.

Please return this document with your signed proposal.

County or Entity:

The contributions are established on the basis that the member 

remains in both pools. Should the member elect not to renew with 

both pools then the NCACC Risk Pools reserve the right to adjust 

the proposal pricing on the basis of single pool membership.

Participation In Multiple Pools

Longevity Credit

INCENTIVE ELIGIBILITY

Watauga County

Multi-Pool Incentives can be earned by participating in both Pools.  You are 
rewarded for your participation in our Workers Compensation and Liability & 
Property Pools with an incentive.

For questions regarding the Longevity Credit, please contact your underwriter.

NCACC 4/23/2025

050325 BCC Meeting

138



JULY 1, 2025  to  JULY 1, 2026 Quoted on: 4/23/2025

Renewal Estimate EXCESS LIABILITY

County or Entity:

Excess Liability provides excess General Liability, Automobile Liability, Public Officials or Law Enforcement
Liability limits. The Excess Liability comes into play when the primary limits have been exhausted.  
The Excess Liability allows the member to purchase a single increased limit, and use the limit where it is necessary. 
The Excess Liability does not increase each individual Liability limit, but is available in any covered Liability area 
should the need arise.  The Pool's Excess Liability extends limits above the Pool's contract only.

Higher limits can be purchased in the form of the Excess Liability options as follows:

EXCESS LIABILITY 

$1,000,000 excess of $2,000,000 underlying 19,145$   

$2,000,000 excess of $2,000,000 underlying 32,150$   

$3,000,000 excess of $2,000,000 underlying 36,577$   

EXCESS LIABILITY LIMIT ONLY APPLIES WHEN SELECTED.

Approved by:

Signature

Printed Name 

Print Title

Date

Financial Officer:

Signature

Date

Please return this document with your signed proposal.

This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by the Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act.

ANNUAL 

CONTRIBUTION SELECT LIMIT 

Watauga County

NCACC 10:13 AM

050325 BCC Meeting

139



NCACC Risk Management Pools-Workers' Compensation

RENEWAL ESTIMATE   JULY 1, 2025 TO JULY 1, 2026 Quoted on: 4/22/2025

Member:
Limits Coverage A :  Workers Compensation: Statutory

Coverage B:   Employer's Liability:  $2,000,000

Class Code Description

Annual 

Remuneration

Modified 

Rate

Modified 

Contribution

6217 EXCAVATION & DRIVERS $424,995 2.876 $12,225
7704 FIRE MARSHALL OR INSPECTOR $205,113 1.741 $3,570
7710 FIREFIGHTERS & DRIVERS PATROL OR PROTECTIVE CORPS $0 1.741 $0
7720 SHERIFF'S DEPT. OFFICERS & DRIVERS $6,197,347 1.663 $103,078
8810 CLERICAL $6,728,758 0.148 $9,931
8831 HOSPITAL VETERINARY & DRIVERS $199,376 0.647 $1,290
8835 NURSING- HOME HEALTH , PUBLIC & TRAVELING ALL EMPLOYEES $294,569 1.470 $4,330
9015 BUILDINGS - NOC $1,606,331 1.885 $30,274
9061 CLUBS & SENIOR CENTERS: NOC & CLERICAL $185,476 0.643 $1,193
9102 PARK NOC ALL EMPLOYEES/DRIVERS $1,153,496 1.153 $13,303
9403 ASHES GARBAGE OR REFUSE COLLECTION & DRIVERS $181,618 3.878 $7,044
9410 MUNICIPAL TOWNSHIP COUNTY OR STATE EMPLOYEES NOC $2,158,621 0.967 $20,872
9999 VOLUNTEERS  (NCACC designated class) $0 16.657 $0

8810x CLERICAL -DSS - N/A $1,854,687 0.148 $2,737
9410x MUNICIPAL TOWNSHIP COUNTY OR STATE EMPLOYEES NOC - DSS$1,560,579 0.967 $15,089

Total Estimated Payroll $22,750,966

Subject to audit. 2025-2026 Contribution: $224,937

Please return this document with your signed proposal.

WATAUGA COUNTY

NCACC 4/22/2025

050325 BCC Meeting

140



AGENDA ITEM 12: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
F. Request to Amend the “Not to Exceed” Amount in Debris Tech’s Notice to Proceed  

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 

The Board previously approved an amendment to the “Not to Exceed” amount for SDR’s contract 
regarding right-of-way debris removal.  In conjunction with that amendment, Debris Tech 
(monitoring company as required by FEMA for reimbursement) is requesting an increase in the 
not to exceed amount of their contract from $1 million to $1.5 million.  The $1.5 million plus the 
$3.8 million for SDR brings the total amount to $5.3 million which is approximately $1,090,781 
less than the initial estimate. 

Board approval is required to grant the increase to $1.5 million in the not to exceed amount of 
Debris Tech’s contract. 

050325 BCC Meeting

141



050325 BCC Meeting

142



 

 
 
 
 

May 6, 2025 

Via email: brooks@debristech.com 
DebrisTech, LLC 
Attn: Brooks Wallace, President 

Re: Letter dated September 28, 2024 from Watauga County, North Carolina to DebrisTech, 
LLC (the “NTP Letter”) 

Dear Brooks, 

In the NTP Letter, the estimated cost of debris removal monitoring is $1,000,000 (the 
“Not to Exceed Amount”).  Watauga County agrees to amend the NTP Email to increase the Not 
to Exceed Amount to $1,500,000.  If you are in agreement, please countersign and return a copy 
to me.  

Sincerely, 

Watauga County, NC 

By:_______________________________ 
Name:  Braxton Eggers 
Title:  Chairman, Board of Commissioners 

Acknowledged and Agreed: 

DebrisTech, LLC 

_______________________ 
Brooks Wallace, President 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

Braxton Eggers, Chairman 
Todd Castle, Vice-Chairman 
Emily Greene 
Tim Hodges 
Ronnie Marsh 

COUNTY MANAGER 
Deron T. Geouque 

COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Nathan Miller 

Administration Building, Suite 205 ● 814 West King Street ● Boone, North Carolina 28607 

Telephone 828-265-8000 
TDD 1-800-735-2962 
Voice 1-800-735-8262 

County of Watauga 
050325 BCC Meeting

143



Blank Page 

050325 BCC Meeting

144



AGENDA ITEM 12: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
G. Boards and Commissions 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 

Watauga Medical Center Board of Trustees 

The Watauga Medical Center Board of Trustees has recommended Mr. Jeff Greene for 
appointment as a Board Trustee.  Mr. Greene’s term would be effective from January 1, 2025, 
through December 31, 2027.  This is a second reading. 

Personnel Advisory Committee 
The Watauga County Personnel Ordinance established a Personnel Advisory Committee which is 
comprised of five (5) persons designated by the Board, authorized to hear employee grievances, 
and recommend decisions to the appointing authority.  The Committee consists of one (1) 
Commissioner, one (1) Department Head and three (3) rank and file employees.  Current members 
and alternates of the Personnel Advisory Committee, including one (1) proposed new rank and file 
member (Deidre Guy, Assistant Finance Director) and two (2) proposed alternate members (Chris 
Marriott, Operations Services Director and Jennifer Kemp, Veterans Services Assistant) are as 
follows: 

Member Position Department Appointment 
Date 

BCC Chairman Commissioner Representative BCC 12/02/2024 
Angie Boitnotte Department Head Representative Project on Aging 12/03/2012 
Deidre Guy Rank and File Employee Representative Finance 05/06/2025 
Regina Houck Rank and File Employee Representative Tax 03/01/2016 
Greg McGrady Rank and File Employee Representative Information Tech. 08/20/2019 
BCC Vice-Chair Commissioner Representative Alternate BCC 12/02/2024 
Chris Marriott Department Head Representative Alternate Sanitation 05/06/2025 
Derrick Ellison Rank and File Employee Representative Alternate Maintenance 03/01/2016 
Lynne Austin Rank and File Employee Representative Social Services 09/03/2019 
Jennifer Kemp Regular Employee Representative Alternate Veterans’ Serv. 05/06/2025 

These are first readings.  

Voluntary Farmland Preservation Program Advisory Board 
The Voluntary Farmland Preservation Program Advisory Board recommends the re-appointment of 
Mr. Kelly Coffey and Mr. Joe McNeil.  Each are willing to continue to serve if so reappointed. 

These are first readings. 

050325 BCC Meeting

145



050325 BCC Meeting

146



Personnel Advisory Committee 

Watauga County has a Personnel Advisory Committee established by the Board of County 
Commissioners, and composed of one County Commissioner, one Department Head and three rank 
and file employees designated by the Board of County Commissioners, with authority to hear employee 
grievances and make a recommendation to the appointing authority.  Each Personnel Advisory 
Committee seat shall also have an alternate member appointed in the case that the primary Committee 
Member is unable to participate in the grievance process, or has a close working or personal 
relationship with the grievant, or any type of conflict of interest that would prevent the committee 
member from being impartial.   

The Personnel Advisory Committee meets only on an as needed basis to hear employee appeals. 

Member Position Department Appointment Date 
BCC Chairman Commissioner Representative BCC 12/02/2024 
Angie Boitnotte Department Head Representative Project on Aging 12/03/2012 
Deidre Guy Regular Employee Representative Finance 05/06/2025 
Regina Houck Regular Employee Representative Tax 03/01/2016 
Greg McGrady Regular Employee Representative Information Tech. 08/20/2019 
BCC Vice-Chair Commissioner Representative Alternate BCC 12/02/2024 
Chris Marriott Department Head Representative Alternate Sanitation 05/06/2025 
Derrick Ellison Regular Employee Representative Alternate Maintenance 03/01/2016 
Lynne Austin Regular Employee Representative Alternate Social Services 09/03/2019 
Jennifer Kemp Regular Employee Representative Alternate Veterans’ Serv. 05/06/2025 

050325 BCC Meeting

147



Watauga County Soil & Water Conservation District 

971 West King Street 
Boone, NC 28607 
(828) 719 - 3409 

Board of Supervisors 
Bill Moretz Todd Combs 
Chris Hughes Denny Norris, Chair Jennie Hanifan 

April 29, 2025 

To:  Watauga County Board of Commissioners 

Two of the Farmland Preservation Program Board Members, the Chair, Kelly Coffey and also Joe 
McNeil, have terms that end this year.  After bringing this to the attention of the Board of Farmland 
Preservation, the Board Members have recommended reappointment of both Kelly Coffee and Joe 
McNeil. 

The Farmland Preservation Board asks that both of these leaders be approved to serve another term on the 
Farmland Preservation Board.   

Thank you for consideration of this matter. 

Michelle Kasey 

Admin/Environmental Educator 

Watauga County Soil & Water 

050325 BCC Meeting

148



AGENDA ITEM 12: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
H. Announcements 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 

An Ethics for Elected Officials training course will be held via Zoom on Thursday, May 22, 2025, 
from 10:00 A.M. to 12:00 P.M. in the Commissioners’ Board Room.  The course is required to be 
taken by all Commissioners by December 2025.  A quorum may be present for the training; 
however, no County business will be conducted. 

The Trustees of Caldwell Community College & Technical Institute have invited the Board of 
Commissioners to a meeting on Wednesday, May 21, 2025, at 6:00 P.M. in the Instructional 
Building on the Watauga Campus.   

AGENDA ITEM 13: 

BREAK 

050325 BCC Meeting

149



Ethics for Elected Officials

Online - Click here to register for this course offering

May 22, 2025


Overview


Register


Discounts &

Scholarships


Materials


Contact

This training will be held live on 5/22/25, online via Zoom, from 10am to

12pm.

Group discounts are not offered for the on-demand version.

Under North Carolina law, members of governing boards of cities, counties,

local boards of education, unified governments, sanitary districts, and

consolidated city-counties are required to receive at least two (2) clock hours

of ethics training within twelve months after each election or appointment to

office. The ethics training requirement is an ongoing obligation, triggered by

each subsequent re-election or reappointment to office.

This online training will satisfy the 2 clock hours of local ethics training

required by state law for elected and appointed officials. This training MUST be

completed within 12 months of election day and is required every time they

are re-elected or appointed and reappointed to a local office.

See further instructions below and in the Preparation Checklist.

Is your board attorney or a member of your board who is an attorney

watching the webinar? The NC State Bar requires attorneys who wish to

claim CLE (Continuing Legal Education) credit to purchase the webinar

3/10/25, 12:12 PM Ethics for Elected Officials | UNC School of Government

https://www.sog.unc.edu/courses/ethics-elected-officials 1/7

050325 BCC Meeting

150



separately in their name. The attorney must self-report to the State Bar

for CLE credit.

What you need to know before you purchase:

A. If multiple incumbent board members need to receive their ethics training,

you all should register via the group rates. Have your clerk or manager register

you all as a group in a single transaction. If you need assistance,

contact registration@sog.unc.edu.

B. Who this training does NOT cover:

Individuals serving on state boards subject to the State Government Ethics Act

(SGEA): Local elected officials who also serve on a state board that is subject to

the State Government Ethics Act (SGEA), including local community college

boards, are required to take ethics training that is offered through the State

Ethics Commission. The SOG ethics-training program for local elected officials

does NOT satisfy the state ethics training, and the state ethics training

does NOT satisfy the local elected official ethics-training which is offered

through this page. Consequently, local elected officials who also serve on a

state board subject to the SGEA, must take both the state and the local ethics

training programs.  Officials who need to complete state ethics training should:

Contact their board's ethics liaison for training, or

Complete the online training available on State Board of Elections and

Ethics Enforcement (formerly the State Ethics Commission)

website: ethics.ncsbe.gov/education/eduOnline

Local ABC Boards: For individuals who serve on a local ABC board, separate

training is required. The SOG ethics training program for local elected officials

does NOT satisfy the local ABC Board training, and the local ABC Board training

does NOT satisfy the local elected officials ethic training. Here is the link to the

webinar page for local ABC Boards.

School Boards: Please contact the NC School Boards Association for further

information.

C. Board notice of a public meeting:

Boards are advised to give public notice of a special meeting for ethics training

sessions if a majority of the board might be in attendance at the event. This is

in keeping with the spirit of the ethics law, and out of an abundance of caution

3/10/25, 12:12 PM Ethics for Elected Officials | UNC School of Government

https://www.sog.unc.edu/courses/ethics-elected-officials 2/7

050325 BCC Meeting

151

mailto:registration@sog.unc.edu
http://ethics.ncsbe.gov/education/eduOnline.aspx
https://www.sog.unc.edu/courses/webinars/ethics-training-abc-boards
https://www.ncsba.org/


concerning the legal requirements for board meetings.

Purchasing the Webinar

A. Who should purchase from your unit:

If you want to receive the group rate, have your clerk or manager register

everyone in a single transaction.

Is your board attorney or a member of your board who is an attorney

watching the webinar? The NC State Bar requires attorneys who wish to

claim CLE (Continuing Legal Education) credit to purchase the webinar

separately in their name, and to self-report to the State Bard for CLE

credit.

Do you have to purchase the webinars for each person watching from

your board?  Yes.

Adding no-reply@sog.unc.edu and lrich@sog.unc.edu to your contacts

will increase the chance of the email getting through.

Issues with purchasing? Simply email our registration department directly

at registration@sog.unc.edu for issues with the registration/purchase process,

passwords, or logging in. Provide your phone number and brief summary of

your issue and someone from that department will contact you shortly. This is

the fastest way to get assistance as there are multiple people in that

department who can respond to you quickly.

LELA Level: This is a 101 Level course in the Local Elected Leaders Academy.

Participating elected officials will earn 2 credits toward their Practitioner

recognition certificate.

LEAD FACULTY

3/10/25, 12:12 PM Ethics for Elected Officials | UNC School of Government

https://www.sog.unc.edu/courses/ethics-elected-officials 3/7

050325 BCC Meeting

152

mailto:no-reply@sog.unc.edu
mailto:lrich@sog.unc.edu
mailto:registration@sog.unc.edu


050325 BCC Meeting

153



AGENDA ITEM 14: 

CLOSED SESSION 

Attorney/Client Matters per, G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3) 

050325 BCC Meeting

154


	Tentative Agenda and Meeting Notice
	Approval of Minutes
	Approval of the May 6, 2025, Agenda
	Public Comment
	Public Hearing to Allow Citizen Comment on A Proposal to Repeal a 2024 Amendment to the Watauga County Building Code Ordinance Which Added the Wording “and all appendices therein”
	Watauga Medics Merger Request
	Old Cove Creek School Facility Feasibility Study and Concept Plan
	Appalachian State University Request for NC Hwy 105 Property Release
	Bid Award Request for Administration HVAC
	Emergency Services Matters
	A.  Resolution Opposing House Bill 675: EMT Personnel Credentialing Modifications and House Bill 219: Counties/Franchise Ambulance Service
	B.  Resolution Opposing Senate Bill 257: Current Operations Appropriations Act of 2025
	C.  Resolution Supporting House Bill 695: Support VIPER/Assist 911 Operations/Dispatch
	D.  Hurricane Helene Update
	E. Powder Horn Site Tree Removal and Construction Driveway Request

	Board of Equalization and Review (E&R) Compensation
	Miscellaneous Administrative Matters
	A.  Presentation of the FY 2026 CIP
	B.  Presentation of the Manager's FY 2026 Recommended Budget
	C.  Proposed Valle Crucis School Change Order
	D.  Civil Design Services for Proposed Solid Wast Convenience Center at Landfill Road
	E.  Proposed Property & Liability and Workers Compensation Renewals Request
	F.  Request to Amend the "Not to Exceed" Amount in Debris Tech's Notice to Proceed
	G.  Boards and Commissions
	H.  Announcements

	Break
	Closed Session



